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Commissioner
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Director

June 15, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into retroactive, sole source agreements and amend fifteen (15) existing contract agreements with
the vendors listed in the table below, by increasing the Price limitation by $519,978 from $2,079,964 to an
amount not to exceed $2,599,942, to continue to provide access to preventive and reparative dental
treatment for individuals participating in the statewide community-based and/or school-based oral health
programs, and extend the Completion Date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, to be effective retroactive
to July 1, 2017, upon date of Governor and Council approval. These agreements were originally approved
by Governor and Council on June 19, 2013, Item #93 and July 10, 2013, ltem #48, and subsequently
amended on May 6, 2015, ltem #16, June 10, 2015, Item #12, June 24, 2015, Iltem #57, and November 4,
2015, item #16. Funds are 57.17% Federal and 42.83% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price fimitation and
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified, without
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

Current Increased Revised
Vendor Modified (Decreased) Modified
Budget Amount Budget
Catholic Medical Center 142,400 35,100 177,500
Concord Hospital, Inc. 94,000 23500 117,500
' Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. 388,000 97,000 485,000
Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc. 108,192 25,624 133,816
Easter Seals New Hampshire 142,400 35,100 177,500
Families First of the Greater Seacoast 205,336 49 869 255,205
Goodwin Community Health 189,792 48,588 238,380
Greater Nashua Dental Connection, Inc. 142,400 35,100 177,500
HealthFirst Family Care Center 95,792 25,088 120,880
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. 96,394 22,830 119,224
Manchester Health Department 95,792 25,088 ‘ 120,880
Monadnock Community Hospital 95,792 25,088 120,880
Speare Memorial Hospital 91,482 21,667 113,149
Sultivan County Oral Health Collaborative, Inc. 95,792 25,088 120,880
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. 96,400 25,248 121,648
TOTAL $2,079,964 $519,978 $2,599,942

See attachment for financial detail
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EXPLANATION

The Department is requesting this retroactive, sole source 12-month amendment to 1) avoid
a break in service of these critical services, and 2) allow the Department adequate time to develop and
publish a new Request for Proposal.

This requested action seeks approval of 15 of 15 agreements to provide statewide increased access
to oral health care services. These services include oral health education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental
sealants, and treatment needed to repair decayed teeth for low income and uninsured children and aduits
statewide.

Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still
common in New Hampshire. The causes of oral health problems are multifaceted: Individuals with less
income, less education or who have disabilities are less likely to be able to access dental care and more
likely to have dental problems. In difficuit economic times, more people have less access to dental care.
Individuals with oral pain and infection end up in hospital emergency departments where treatment is costly
and their dental issues remain unresolved. Among third grade students, without access to care and
assessed in the 2014 statewide school-based survey, thirty-five percent (35%) had a history of tooth decay.
Among older adults in six senior centers and congregate meal sites, thirty-one percent (31%) had untreated
decay. In addition, increasing numbers of refugees have even greater difficulty accessing oral health care
when the need for foreign language interpretation presents another barrier to dental treatment.

Second and third grade children eligible for school-based dental services will receive oral health
education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to repair decayed teeth within the
school environment. Children through age 19, and adults eligible for community-based dental services wili
receive oral health basic preventive, diagnostic, and restorative dental services at a community dental
provider's office. Anticipated outcomes from this program will include fewer numbers of low-income,
uninsured residents with untreated decay and more residents receiving preventive oral health care in New
Hampshire.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, children, teens, pregnant
women, and adults from low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral
health care services.

These vendors were selected for this project through a competitive bid process.

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-
Based oral health services:

Number of 2" and 3" grade students that return consent forms

Number of 2™ and 3" grade students that receive oral screenings

Percent of all 2" and 3™ grade students screened to access oral health needs

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent molar
Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with untreated decay that are referred for service
Percent of all 2" and 3" grade students screened with a history of decay
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The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for Community-
Based oral health services:

Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screenings
Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings
Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings)
Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment
Percent of children that receive dental sealants
Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 57.17% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
PPHF 2016 Preventive Health and Human Services Block Grant, and 42.83% General Funds.

in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Laal
Lisa Morris, MSSW
irector

Approved by: Mt\jﬁ\

Jafirey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



ORAL HEALTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL BASED CONTRACTS

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, ORAL
HEALTH PROGRAM
SFY 2018 - 57.17% Federal Funds and 42.83% General Funds
CFDA #93.758 ~ FAIN# B010OT009098

Catholic Medical Center
Service Provided:

Community Based

Vendor #177240-B001

PO # 1032197

State Class | Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 36,100.00| $ -1% 36,100.00
2015 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ 35,100.00( $ -1% 35,100.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 36,100.00| $ -1 S 36,100.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003| $  35,100.00( $ - $ 35/100.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ - 1% 3510000( $ 35,100.00
Subtotal | $ 142,400.00 | $ 35,100.00| $ 177,500.00
Concord Hospital, Inc.
Service Provided: Community Based Vendor #177653-B011 PO # 1031461
State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003  $ 23,50000( $ -1 % 23,500.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 2350000 $ -1 8 23,500.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003| $  23,500.00| $ -1 $ 2350000
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003| $  23,500.00| $ -1$% 23500.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ - $ 2350000| % 23,500.00
Subtotal | $ 94,000.00 | $ 23,500.00[ $ 117,500.00

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Service Provided:

Community/School Based

Vendor #155327-B001

PO # 1031462

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Account
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 97,00000| $ -1 9% 97,000.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003| $  97,000.00| $ -1 $ 97,000.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 97,000.00| $ -1 % 97,000.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 97,000.00| $ -1 $ 97,000.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ -|$ 97,00000] $ 97,000.00
Subtotal [ $ 388,000.00| $ 97,000.00{ $§ 485,000.00
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ORAL HEALTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL BASED CONTRACTS

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Dental Health Works of Cheshire County, Inc.

Service Provided:

Community Based

Vendor #167928-B001

PO # 1031568

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003 | $  28,472.00| $ -1 $ 28,472.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 2562400 $ -1% 25,624.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003| $  28,472.00| $ -1 $ 2847200
2017 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 2562400 $ -1 9 25,624.00
2018 ] 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1 % 25624.00| $ 25,624.00
Subtotal | $ 108,192.00 | $ 25,624.00] $§ 133,816.00

Easter Seals New Hampshire

Service Provided:

Community Based

Vendor #177204-B005

PO # 1031467

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 36,100.00| $ -1%$ 36,100.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $  35,100.00( $ -1 % 35/100.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $  36,100.00| $ -[$ 36,100.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 35,100.00| $ -9 35,100.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -|$ 3510000 $ 35,100.00
Subtotal | $ 142,400.00| $ 35,100.00( $ 177,500.00

Families First of the Greater Seacoast

Service Provided:

Community/School Based

Vendor #166629-B001

PO # 1031470

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
Service Provided: Community Based
2014 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 23,500.00| $ -1% 23,500.00
2015 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 23,500.00| $ -1$ 23,500.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003 | $ 23,500.00| 3 -1 $ 23,500.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 23,500.00| 3 -1 $ 23,500.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1$ 2350000| % 23,500.00
Subtotal | $ 94,000.00| $ 23,500.00( $ 117,500.00
Service Provided: School-Based
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 29,299.00| $ -1 $ 29,299.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 26,369.00| $ -1 9 26,369.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $  29,299.00} $ -1 % 29,299.00
2017 |1102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 26,369.00 $ -1 8 26,369.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1% 26,369.00] $ 26,369.00
Subtotal | $§ 111,336.00| $ 26,369.00| $§ 137,705.00
Subtotal | $§ 205,336.00 | $§ 49,869.00| $§ 255,205.00
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ORAL HEALTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL BASED CONTRACTS

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Goodwin Community Health

Service Provided:

Community/School Based

Vendor #154703-B001

PO # 1031473

State Class / Cur.rt?nt Increase Revfs:ed
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
Service Provided: Community Based
2014 | 102-500731{ Contracts for Prog Sves [ 90072003 $ 23,500.00( % -1$ 23,500.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 $ 23,500.00| $ -1 $ 2350000
2016 | 102-500731} Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 23,50000| $ -1%$ 2350000
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 23,50000( $ -1 9 23,500.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ -1$ 2350000 $ 2350000
Subtotal | $ 94,000.00 | $ 23,500.00| $ 117,500.00
Service Provided: School-Based
2014 1102-500731| Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ 22,808.00! $ -19 22,808.00
2015 [ 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ 25,088.00( $ -1 % 25,088.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,808.00| $ -1 $ 22,808.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003} $ 25,088.00| $ -1 9 25,088.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svecs | 90072003 $ -1 $ 25088.00] $ 25088.00
Subtotal | $ 95,792.00 | $ 25,088.00] $ 120,880.00
Subtotal | § 189,792.00| $ 48,588.00| $ 238,380.00

Greater Nashua Dental Connection, inc.

Service Provided:

Community Based

Vendor #158470-B001

PO # 1031513

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 $ 36,10000( $ -1 9§ 36,100.00
2015 ] 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 $ 3510000 $ -1 3 35,100.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves { 90072003 $  36,100.00| $ -|$ 36,100.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 35,100.00| $ -1 9 35,100.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003( $ -1% 3510000 % 35,100.00
Subtotal | § 142,400.00| $ 35,100.00{ $ 177,500.00
HealthFirst Family Care Center
Service Provided: School Based Vendor #158221-B001 PO # 1031514
State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 [ 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 900720031 $ 22,808.00| $ -1 $ 22,808.00
2015 | 102-500731 { Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ 25,088.00| $ -1 % 25,088.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs { 90072003 $ 22,808.00| $ -1 % 22,808.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 $  25,088.00| $ -|$ 2508800
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 900720031 $ -1$% 25088.00| $ 25,088.00
Subtotal | $ 95,792.00 [ $ 25,088.00] $ 120,880.00
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ORAL HEALTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL BASED CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

Service Provided:

School Based

Vendor #177677-R001

PO # 1031518

State Class / Currt?nt Increase Rev_is_ed
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svecs | 90072003 $  25,367.00| $ -1 % 25367.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,830.00( $ -1 % 22,830.00
2016 | 102-500731{ Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003 $  25367.00( $ -1 $ 25367.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 22,830.00| $ -1 $ 22,830.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ -1% 22,83000| % 22,830.00
Subtotal | $ 96,394.00 | $ 22,830.00| $ 119,224.00
Manchester Health Department
Service Provided: Community Based Vendor #177433-B009 PO # 1031522
State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,808.00| $ -1 9 22,808.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 25,088.00( $ -1 8 25,088.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003 | $ 22,808.00( % -1 % 22,808.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 25,088.00( $ -1 9$ 25,088.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 900720031 $ -1% 2508800] % 25,088.00
Subtotal | $ 95,792.00| $ 25,088.00{ $ 120,880.00

Monadnock Community Hospital

Service Provided:

School Based

Vendor #177164-B006

PO # 1031569

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,808.00| $ -]1$ 22,808.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 25,088.00( $ -1 %  25,088.00
2016 | 102-500731 [ Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 22,808.00| $ -1$ 22,808.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs [ 90072003 $  25,088.00( $ -1$ 25088.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1 % 25088.00( % 25,088.00
Subtotal | $ 95,792.00 [ $ 25,088.00| $§ 120,880.00
Speare Memorial Hospital
Service Provided: School Based Vendor #177178-B002 PO # 1031533
State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 2407400 $ -13 24,074.00
2015 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 21667.00( $ -19% 21,667.00
2016 | 102-500731 ] Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 2407400 $ -1$ 24,074.00
2017 ] 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $  21,667.00] $ -1%$ 21667.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1% 2166700 $ 21,667.00
Subtotal | $ 91,482.00 | $ 21,667.00( $§ 113,149.00
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ORAL HEALTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL BASED CONTRACTS
FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Sullivan County Oral Health Collaborative, Inc.
Service Provided:

School Based

Vendor #208150-B002

PO # 1046983

State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 [ 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 22,808.00( $ -19 22.808.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 25,088.00( $ -1 $ 25,088.00
2016 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,808.00( $ -19% 22,808.00
2017 ] 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sves | 90072003 | $ 25,088.00{ % -1 % 25,088.00
2018 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -1 $ 2508800]| $ 25,088.00
Subtotal | $ 95,792.00| $§ 25,088.00( $§ 120,880.00
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Service Provided: School Based Vendor #177195-B011 PO # 1031571
State Class / Current Increase Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Job Code Modified (Decrease) Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
2014 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svecs | 90072003 | $ 22952.00( $ -1 $ 22,952.00
2015 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 $ 25248.00| $ -1 % 25,248.00
2016 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 22,952.00( $ -1 $ 22,952.00
2017 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ 25248.00( $ -19 25,248.00
2018 | 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svcs | 90072003 | $ -|1$ 25248.00{ $ 25,248.00
Subtotal | $ 96,400.00 [ $ 25,248.00| $ 121,648.00
TOTAL $ 2,079,964.00 | $519,978.00| $ 2,599,942.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

This 2" Amendment to the Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment Two”) dated this 8" day of June, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Catholic
Medical Center (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a principal place of
business at 100 McGregor Street, Suite 305, Manchester, NH 03102.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on July
10, 2013, Item #48, and subsequently amended on May 6, 2015, ltem #16, the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope of work and the
payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Biock 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.
2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $35,100 from $142,400 to read: $177,500.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

5. Amend Budget to:
s Add Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2018.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

f I-E@ Human Services

ame: Lisa Morris, MSSW
Title:  Director

Y3017

Date

Catholic Medicgl Center

G/RG /17

Date Name: JoS{V h ”9¢
e Ores, ﬁfnﬁev-( o

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of A He ”‘/”'4" < County of Wik b o Jla on [“'/ °2Q/ ’ , before the undersigned officer,

personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satlsfactorlly proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

M (L p bl

Signature of No; Public or Justiee-ef-the-Reace—

Darm“ﬂy C. k}p,l sh

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace
“\\\\\mmm,,

S 510/

qn iy,

es
Qi'¢c MM\SS!ON %%
: CXP\B -
LoMAYe, 2009 ¢S
% \7."0 =
o QL US
”f,,,'i'qo’.éﬁ\f.?“o"\\‘z“x\“
"WV HAMROS
’”mumm\“
Catholic Medical Center Amendment #2

Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OFATHE ATTORNEY GENERAL
Date L Name: .
Title: m [

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the GoVerher’and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meefjng)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Catholic Medical Center Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: 52 ]
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Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2018

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Catholic Medical Center (Poisson Dental)

Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2018

o

<<<<<

 indirect/Fixed Cos

Allocation Method fore
S R R S T i e i

fbfal Salary/Wages

33,100.00

Employee Benefits

Consultants

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation

Supplies:

Educational

2,000.00

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

Travel

Occupancy

o I o

Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software

10.

Marketing/Communications

11.

Staff Education and Training

12.

Subcontracts/Agreements

13.

Other (specific details mandatory):

DDA |R| P 0| R |n| R | PR | RN | AR 1| AP | AN B | B | R || B |
'

AR RN AR AR |€R | N 7| R 7| R | N | 7| A A | RN | B | R | AR AP
1

TOTAL

35,100.00

ry-y
i hvid
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CATHOLIC MEDICAL.
CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 07, 1974, |
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business 1D: 62116

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2nd day of June A.D. 2017.

B o

William M, Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Neil Levesque, Officer and Secretary, of Catholic Medical Center, do hereby certify that:

1. Iam aduly elected Secretary of Catholic Medical Center, a voluntary corporation
organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire ("CMC")

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Directors of the Corporation, duly held on June 29, 2017:

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into any and all contracts, amendments,
renewals, revisions or modifications thereto, with the State of New Hampshire, acting
through its Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, for the provision of Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health
services.

RESOLVED: That the President & CEO is hereby authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments; and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.
Joseph Pepe, MD is the duly elected President & CEO of the corporation.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and
effect as of the 29™ day of June, 2017;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Officer of Secretary of the
corporation this 29" day of June, 2017

Me'% /«w/u/

Neil Levesque, Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 29th day of June, 2017, by

Neil Levesque, Secretary Catholic Medical Center.
oniZZ, & (el

Dorothy C. W¢lsh, Notary Public, "
My Commassion Expires May %Qw/ "”’4/,,
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
06/27/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: K the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
MARSH USA, INC.
99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110

Attn: Boston certrequest@Marsh.com  Fax: 212-948-4377

CONTACT

NAME:

PHONE FAX
{AJC, No):

E-MAIL

ADDRESS:

INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
715651-ALL-GAWXP-17-18 INSURER a : Pro Select Insurance Company
INSURED . Safety National Casualty Corp. 15105
CMC HEALTHCARE SYSTEM INSURER B ; Safely , ly Corp
100 MCGREGOR STREET INSURER ¢ : Arch Specialty Insurance Company 21199
MANCHESTER, NH 03102 INSURER D :
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-008777628-04 REVISION NUMBER: 1

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL[SUBR
|[4Ts§ TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (Jﬁh%%‘/vfr% &%6%7\(5’% LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 002NH000016052 07/01/2017 07/01/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 50,000
| MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
. PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
| X | poLicy fECr Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 3,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
B | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CAF4056948 07/01/2017 07/01/2018 PAPQsh e $ 1,000,000
| X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) |
| X | AL OUNED SCHEQULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| | HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
¢ | X | UMBRELLA LiAB OCCUR UHL0050896-05 07/01/2017  |07/01/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB X | CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 5,000,000
DED L ’ RETENTION $ $
B8 |WORKERS COMPENSATION SP 4053316 07/01/2017 07/01/2018 X | PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY [ STATUTE l ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE NIA E.L EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
{Mandatory in NH) ' *SIR $750,000 E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1.000 000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E_L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § MOV,
A |PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 002NH000016052 07/01/2017 07/01/2018 PER CLAIM 1,000,000
AGGREGATE 3,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduie, may be hed if more space is required}

EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department
Of Health And Human Services

129 Pieasant St.
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

Audan. Ielloof—

Susan Molloy

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Catholic Medical Center

Mission Statement of Catholic Medical Center:

The heart of Catholic Medical Center is to provide health, healing, and hope
in @ manner that offers innovative high quality services, compassion, and
respect for the human dignity of every individual who seeks or needs our
care as part of Christ’s healing ministry through the Catholic Church.



BAKER
NEWMAN

NOYES

Catholic Medical Center
and Subsidiary

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and Other Information

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
With Independent Auditors' Report

Baker Newiman & Noyes, LLC
MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER
AND SUBSIDIARY

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND OTHER INFORMATION

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Other Reports:
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

{

0 ~3 N WA W

40

41

43
46
47




Baker dlevanant & Moyes, L1L.C
MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRLE
800,244, 7444 L www.hnnepa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion,




Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 and the results
of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20, 2016
on our consideration of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regnlations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
teporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Ruker Newnn f NOJQ ne

Manchester, New Hampshire
September 20, 2016




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,2016 and 2015

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable from patients, less allowances
of $21,906,010 in 2016 and $19,657,249 in 2015
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets:

Note receivable, less allowance of $793,885 in 2015
Intangible assets and other

Assets whose use is limited:
Pension and insurance obligations
Board designated and donor restricted investments
Held by trustee under revenue bond agreements

Total assets

2016 2015
$ 39,176,245 § 36,274,074
26,650,428 26,347,421
47,860,095 38,585,556
3,199,310 2,124,292
6,314,657 4,387,258
123,200,735 107,718,601
81,712,922 80,953,109

711,093 -

10051221  _10,207.121
10,762,314 10,207,121
14,326,697 12,333,513
89,916,768 92,408,487
3,945,048 6.126.802
108,188,513 110,868,802
$323,864,484 $309,747,633




LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Amounts due to affiliates
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Accrued pension and other liabilities, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

201 2015

$ 20,778,935 §$ 19,868,252
12,086,857 15,084,630
12,869,289 10,535,852
1,575,783 1,375,956
4,218,098 3,999,845
51,528,966 50,864,535
130,914,684 87,774,564
63.190.252  _64.199.335
245,633,902 202,838,434
69,990,495 98,262,558
395,655 330,158
7.844.432 8,316,483
78,230,582 106,909,199
$323,.864.484 $300,747.633




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Net patient service revenues, net of
contractual allowances and discounts
Provision for doubtful accounts

Net patient service revenues less
provision for doubtful accounts

Other revenue
Disproportionate share funding

Total revenues

Expenses: .
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Supplies and other
New Hampshire Medicaid enhancement tax
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total expenses
Income from operations
Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income
Net realized (losses) gains on sale of investments
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Total nonoperating (losses) gains, net
Excess of revenues and (losses) gains over expenses
Unrealized depreciation on investments

Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Assets released from restriction used for capital

Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost

Net assets transferred to affiliates
Decrease in unrestricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets at beginning of year

Unrestricted net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
$375,950,006 $338,747,338
(20541.899)  (22.167,345)
355,008,107 316,580,493
11,526,894 10,153,523
11.421,493 2,452,816
377,956,494 329,186,832
178,614,888 163,536,150
124,795,646 111,408,793
15,778,153 14,962,857
12,441,142 10,953,213
2,208,655 2,717,561
333,838484  303.578.574
44,118,010 25,608,258
1,147,170 1,898,644
(845,551) 1,132,800
(1,034.157) -
(732,538) _ 3,031,444
43385472 28,639,702
(2,332,577)  (1,519,111)
(462,570) -
75,022 272,000
(42,003,139)  (28,985,617)
(26.934.271)  (17,100,599)
(28,272,063)  (18,693,625)
98.262.558 116,956,183

$.69,990,495 §_98,262.558




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

Balances at June 30, 2014 $116,956,183 $ 528,802

$8,161,758 $125,646,743

Excess of revenues and gains over expenses 28,639,702 - - 28,639,702
Investment income - 1,137 1,177 2,314
Changes in interest in perpetual trust ~ - 167,919 167,919
Restricted contributions - 94,278 - 94,278
Unrealized depreciation on investments (1,519,111) - (14,371) (1,533,482)
Net assets transferred to affiliates (17,100,599) - - (17,100,599)
Assets released from restriction

used for operations - (22,059) - (22,059)
Assets released from restriction

used for capital 272,000 (272,000) - -
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost (28,985.617) = - (28.985.617)

(18,693,625)  (198.644) 154,725  (18.737,544)

Balances at June 30, 2015 98,262,558 330,158 8,316,483 106,909,199
Excess of revenues and (losses) gains

Over expenses 43,385,472 - - 43,385,472
Investment income - 1,371 22 1,393
Changes in interest in perpetual trust - - (434,195) (434,195)
Restricted contributions - 182,178 - 182,178
Unrealized depreciation on investments (2,332,577) - (37,878) (2,370,455)
Change in fair value of interest rate

swap agreement (462,570) - - (462,570)
Net assets transferred to affiliates (26,934,271) - - (26,934,271)
Assets released from restriction

used for operations - (43,030) - (43,030)
Assets released from restriction

used for capital , 75,022 (75,022) - -
Pension-related changes other than

net periodic pension cost (42,003.139) - - (42,003,139)

(28,272.063) 65.497 (472,051) (28,678,617)

Balances at June 30, 2016 $.69.990,495  $.395,655

See accompanying notes.

$7.844,432 $_78,230,582




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Operating activities:
Decrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Decrease in reserve for loan guaranty
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost
Net assets transferred to affiliates
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investments
Decrease (increase) in interest in perpetual trust
Unrealized depreciation on investments
Loss on extingnishment of debt
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreement
Bond discount/premium and issuance cost amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Amounts due from/to affiliates
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries, wages and related accounts
Amounts payable to third-party payors
Accrued pension and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Payments received from note receivable
Net change in assets held by trustee under revenue bond agreements
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Net cash used by investing activities

Financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on capital leases
Bond issuance costs
Restricted gifts and investment income
Net assets transferred to affiliates

Net cash used by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Assets acquired under capital lease agreements

See accompanying notes.

2016

015

$ (28,678,617) $(18,737,544)

12,441,142 10,953,213
(1,648,436) -
42,003,139 28,985,617
26,934271 17,100,599
(183,571) (96,592)
845551 (1,132,300)
434,195 (167,919)
2,370,455 1,533,482
1,034,157 -
462,570 -
(193,475) (209,478)
(9,274,539)  (9,315,441)
(1,075,018) (113,381)
(2,005,834) (327,786)
199,827 65,644
(625,807)  (2,252,746)
910,687 4,723,087
(2,997,773) 896,447
2,333,437 409,971
2293461  _(9.903.404)
45,579,822 22,410,469
(13,100,955)  (15,768,854)
78,435 72,648
2,181,754 (46,216)
27,241,476 50,516,372
(30,696.149)  (49.944,842)
(14,295,439)  (15,170,892)
(24,134,512)  (2,550,000)
24,070,000 -
(1,309,668) (873,940)
(257,332) -
183,571 96,592
(26.934.271)  (17.100.599)
(28382212) (20,467,947
2,902,171  (13,228,370)
36274.074 _49.502.444

$.39.176245 $.36.274.074

$_3.061,287




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Organization

The consolidated financial statements for Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016 include the accounts of Catholic Medical Center (the Medical Center), a voluntary
not-for-profit acute care hospital based in Manchester, New Hampshire, and CMC Ancillary Health
Services, LLC (CAHS). The Medical Center, which primarily serves residents of New Hampshire and
northern Massachusetts, is controlled by CMC Healthcare System, Inc. (the System), a not-for-profit
corporation which functions as the parent company and sole member of the Medical Center,

During fiscal year 2016, the Boards of the System, Huggins Hospital (HH) and Monadnock Community
Hospital (MCH) signed letters of intent to create an affiliation between the System, HH and MCH. The

transaction is subject to execution of certain definitive agreements, confirmatory due diligence, and
notice to and approval by certain state and federal agencies.

Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Medical Center and CAHS. Significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The primary estimates relate to collectibility of receivables from patients and third-party
payors, amounts payable to third-party payors, accrued compensation and benefits, conditional asset
retirement obligations, and self-insurance reserves.

Income Taxes

The Medical Center is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section
50i(a) of the Code. Management evaluated the Medical Center's tax positions and concluded the
Medical Center has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business
income and had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements.




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

CAHS is a for-profit organization and, in accordance with federal and state tax laws, files income tax
returns, as applicable. There was no provision for income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015. There are no significant deferred tax assets or liabilities. CAHS has concluded there are no
significant uncertain tax positions requiring disclosure and there is no material liability for unrecognized
tax benefits. CAHS's policy is to recognize interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest
expense and penalties in income tax expense.

Performance Indicator

Excess of revenues and (losses) gains over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses
and nonoperating gains and losses. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be
ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as operating revenue and
expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating gains or losses, which
include realized gains and losses on the sales of securities and property and equipment, unrestricted
investment income, loss on extinguishment of debt and contributions to community agencies.

Charity Care and Community Benefits

The Medical Center has a formal charity care policy under which patient care is provided to patients who
meet certain criteria without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Medical Center
does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care; therefore, they are not
reported as revenues. The Medical Center rendered charity care in accordance with this policy, which,
at established charges, amounted to $12,155,837 and $18,966,083 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Of the Medical Center's $333,838,484 and $303,578,574 total expenses reported in 2016 and 2015,
respectively, an estimated $3,800,000 and $6,100,000, respectively, arose from providing services to
charity patients. The estimated costs of providing charity services are based on a calculation which
applies a ratio of costs to charges to the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to
charity patients. The ratio of cost to charges is calculated based on the Medical Center's total expenses
divided by gross patient service revenue.

The Medical Center provides community service programs, without charge, such as the Medication
Assistance Program, Community Education and Wellness, Patient Transport, and the Parish Nurse
Program. The costs of providing these programs amounted to $916,039 and $716,119 for the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Medical Center to credit risk consist primarily of cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and investments. The risk with respect to cash equivalents is minimized
by the Medical Center's policy of investing in financial instruments with short-term maturities issued by
highly rated financial institutions. The Medical Center's accounts receivable are primarily due from
third-party payors and amounts are presented net of expected contractual allowances and uncollectible
amounts. The Medical Center's investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are
subject to market risk. Investments that exceeded 10% of investments include the SSGA S&P 500
Tobacco Free Fund as of June 30, 2016 and 2015.




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when
purchased and investments in overnight deposits at various banks. Cash and cash equivalents exclude
amounts whose use is limited by board designation and amounts held by trustees under revenue bond
and other agreements. The Medical Center maintains approximately $38,000,000 and $35,000,000 at
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, of its cash and cash equivalent accounts with a single institution.
The Medical Center has not experienced any losses associated with deposits at this instifution.

Net Patient Service Revenues and Accounts Receivable

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments at amounts
different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates per
discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, per diem payments and fee schedules. Net patient
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and
others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.
Changes in these estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the year in which
they occur.

The Medical Center recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who
have third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured
patients, the Medical Center provides a discount approximately equal to that of its largest private
insurance payors.

The provision for doubtful accounts is based upon management's assessment of historical and expected
net collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage,
and other collection indicators. The Medical Center records a provision for doubtful accounts in the
period services are provided related to self-pay patients, including both uninsured patients and patients
with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for a portion of their
balance.

Periodically throughout the year, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon historical write-off experience. The results of this review are then used to make
any modifications to the provision for doubtful accounts to establish an appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts. The decrease in the provision for doubtful accounts in 2016 is driven primarily by
certain shifts in payor mix during the fiscal year. Accounts receivable are written off after collection
efforts have been followed in accordance with internal policies.

Inventories

Inventories of supplies are stated at the lower of cost (determined by the first-in, first-out method) or
market.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost at time of purchase or fair value at the time of donation,
less accumulated depreciation. The Medical Center's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and charge maintenance and repairs currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of the related assets. The provisions for depreciation and amortization have been determined using
the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 2 to 40 years, Assets which have been purchased but not yet placed in service are
included in construction in progress and no depreciation expense is recorded,

Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations

The Medical Center recognizes the fair value of a liability for legal obligations associated with asset
retirements in the period in which the obligation is incurred, in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (ASC 410-20). When the liability is initially
recorded, the cost of the asset retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of
the related long lived asset. The liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalized
cost associated with the retirement obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset.
Upon settlement of the obligation, any difference between the cost to settle the asset retirement
obligation and the liability recorded is recognized as a gain or loss in the consolidated statement of
operations.

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, $1,126,280 and $1,112,223, respectively, of conditional asset retirement
obligations are included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Goodwill

The Medical Center reviews its goodwill and other long-lived assets annually to determine whether the
carrying amount of such assets is impaired. Upon determination that an impairment has occurred, these
assets are reduced to fair value. There were no impairments recorded for the years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015.

Retirement Benefits

The Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan (the Plan) provides retirement benefits for certain employees
of the Medical Center and certain employees of an affiliated organization who have attained age twenty-
one and work at least 1,000 hours per year. The Plan consists of a benefit accrued to July 1, 1985, plus
2% of plan year earnings (to legislative maximums) per year. The Medical Center's funding policy is to
contribute amounts to the Plan sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements set forth in the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, plus such additional amounts as may be determined
to be appropriate from time to time. The Plan is intended to constitute a plan described in Section 414(k)
of the Code, under which benefits derived from employer contributions are based on the separate account
balances of participants in addition to the defined benefits under the Plan.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Effective January 1, 2008 the Medical Center decided to close participation in the Plan to new
participants. As of January 1, 2008, current participants continued to participate in the Plan while new
employees receive a higher matching contribution to the tax-sheltered annuity benefit program discussed
below.

During 2011, the Board of Trustees voted to freeze the accrual of benefits under the Plan effective
December 31, 2011,

The Plan was amended effective as of May 1, 2016 to provide a limited opportﬁnity for certain
terminated vested participants to elect an immediate lump sum or annuity distribution option.

The Medical Center also maintains tax-sheltered annuity benefit programs in which it matches one half
of employee contributions up to 3% of their annval salary, depending on date of hire, plus an additional
3% - 5% based on tenure. The Medical Center made matching contributions under the program of
$5,241,882 and $4,986,643 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

During 2007, the Medica! Center created a nonqualified deferred compensation plan covering certain
employees under Section 457(b) of the Code. Under the plan, a participant may elect to defer a portion
of their compensation to be held until payment in the future to the participant or his or her beneficiary.
Consistent with the requirements of the Code, all amounts of deferred compensation, including but not
limited to any investments held and all income attributable to such amounts, property, and rights will
remain subject to the claims of the Medical Center's creditors, without being restricted to the payment
of deferred compensation, until payment is made to the participant or their beneficiary. No contributions
were made by the Medical Center for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

The Medical Center also provides a noncontributory supplemental executive retirement plan covering
certain former executives of the Medical Center, as defined. The Medical Center's policy is to accrue
costs under this plan using the "Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method" and to amortize past
service costs over a fifteen year period. Benefits under this plan are based on the participant's final
average salary, social security benefit, retirement income plan benefit, and total years of service. Certain
investments have been designated for payment of benefits under this plan and are included in assets
whose use is limited—-pension and insurance obligations.

During 2007, the Medical Center created a supplemental executive retirement plan covering certain
executives of the Medical Center. The Medical Center recorded compensation expense of $446,521 and
$319,990 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to this plan.

Employee Fringe Benefits

The Medical Center has an "earned time" plan. Under this plan, each qualifying employee "earns" hours
of paid leave for each pay period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations, holidays,
or illness. Hours earned but not used are vested with the employee and are paid to the employee upon
termination. The Medical Center expenses the cost of these benefits as they are earned by the employees.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Debt Issuance Costs/Original Issue Discount or Premium

The debt issuance costs incurred to obtain financing for the Medical Center's construction and renovation
programs and refinancing of prior bonds and the original issue discount or premium are amortized to
interest expense using the straight-line method over the repayment period of the bonds. This
approximates the effective interest method. The original issue discount or premium and debt issuance
costs are presented as a component of long-term debt.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Resiricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include assets held by trustees under indenture agreements,
pension and insurance obligations, designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees, over which the
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes, and donor-restricted
investments.

Classification of Net Assets

Gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
by the Medical Center has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor
restriction expires (i.e., when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished),
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated
statements of operations as either net assets released from restrictions used for operations (for noncapital-
related items and included in other revenue) or as net assets released from restrictions used for capital
(for capital-related items).

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Medical Center
in perpetuity. Income earned on permanently restricted net assets, to the extent not restricted by the
donor, including net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments, is included in the
consolidated statements of operations as unrestricted resources or as a change in temporarily restricted
net assets in accordance with donor-intended purposes or applicable law.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. See Note 8
for further discussion regarding fair value measurements. Realized gains or losses on the sale of
investment securities are determined by the specific identification method and are recorded on the
settlement date. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenues
and (losses) gains over expenses unless the investments are classified as trading securities or losses are
considered other-than-temporary. Interest and dividend income on unrestricted investments, unrestricted
investment income on permanently restricted investments and unrestricted net realized gains/losses are
reported as nonoperating gains/losses.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derivative Instruments

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value
regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
are recognized either in the excess of revenues and (losses) gains over expenses or net assets, depending
on whether the derivative is speculative or being used to hedge changes in fair value or cash flows. See
also Note 5.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trust

The Medical Center is the beneficiary of trust funds administered by trustees or other third parties, Trusts
wherein the Medical Center has the irrevocable right to receive the income earned on the trust assets in
perpetuity are recorded as permanently restricted net assets at the fair value of the trust at the date of
receipt. Income distributions from the trusts are reported as investment income that increase unrestricted
net assets, unless restricted by the donor. Annual changes in the fair value of the trusts are recorded as
increases or decreases to permanently restricted net assets,

Investment Policies

The Medical Center's investment policies provide guidance for the prudent and skillful management of
invested assets with the objective of preserving capital and maximizing returns. The invested assets
include endowment, specific purpose and board designated (unrestricted) funds,

Endowment funds are identified as permanent in nature, intended to provide support for current or future
operations and other purposes identified by the donor. These funds are managed with disciplined longer-
term investment objectives and strategies designed to accommodate relevant, reasonable, or probable
events,

Temporarily restricted funds are temporary in nature, restricted as to time or purpose as identified by the
donor or grantor. These funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with
specific identified spending objectives.

Board designated funds have various intermediate/long-term time horizons associated with specific
spending objectives as determined by the Board of Trustees.

Management of these assets is designed to maximize total return while preserving the capital values of
the funds, protecting the funds from inflation and providing liquidity as needed. The objective is to
provide a real rate of return that meets inflation, plus 4% to 5%, over a long-term time horizon.

The Medical Center targets a diversified asset allocation that places emphasis on achieving its long-term
return objectives within prudent risk constraints.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Spending Policy for Appropriation of Assets for Expenditure

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), the Medical
Center considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the
organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (¢) general economic conditions; (d) the possible
effect of inflation and deflation; () the expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of the organization.

Spending policies may be adopted by the Medical Center, from time to time, to provide a stream of
funding for the support of key programs. The spending policies are structured in a manner to ensure that
the purchasing power of the assets is maintained while providing the desired level of annual funding to
the programs. The Medical Center currently has a policy allowing interest and dividend income earned
on investments to be used for operations with the goal of keeping principal, including its appreciation,
intact.

Federal Grant Revenue and Expenditures

Revenues and expenses under federal grant programs are recognized as the related expenditure is
incurred.

Malpractice Loss Contingencies

The Medical Center has a claims-made basis policy for its malpractice insurance coverage. A claims-
made basis policy provides specific coverage for claims reported during the policy term. The Medical
Center has established a reserve to cover professional liability exposure, which may not be covered by
insurance. The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims in excess
of insurance coverage may be asserted against the Medical Center. In the event a loss contingency should
occur, the Medical Center would give it appropriate recognition in its consolidated financial statements
in conformity with accounting standards. The Medical Center expects to be able to obtain renewal or
other coverage in future periods.

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-24, “"Health Care Entities” (Topic
954). Presentation of Insurance Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries, at June 30, 2016 and 2015,
the Medical Center recorded a liability of $12,262,255 and $11,977,416, respectively, related to estimated
professional liability losses covered under this policy. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Medical Center
also recorded a receivable of $8,514,255 and $8,060,416, respectively, related to estimated recoveries
under insurance coverage for recoveries of the potential losses. These amounts are included in accrued
pension and other liabilities, and intangible assets and other, respectively, on the consolidated balance
sheets.




CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Workers' Compensation

The Medical Center maintains workers' compensation insurance under a self-insured plan. The plan
offers, among other provisions, certain specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage to protect the Medical
Center against excessive losses. The Medical Center has employed independent actuaries to estimate
the ultimate costs, if any, of the settlement of such claims. Accrued workers' compensation losses of
$2,878,971 and $2,909,142 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, have been discounted at 1.25% and,
in management's opinion, provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. At June 30, 2016,
$1,260,992 and $1,617,979 is recorded within accounts payable and accrued expenses and accrued
pension and other liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets., The
Medical Center has also recorded $293,014 and $434,929 within other current assets and intangible assets
and other, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets to limit the accrued losses to
the retention amount at June 30, 2016. At June 30, 2015, $1,270,628 and $1,638,514 is recorded within
accounts payable and accrued expenses and accrued pension and other liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Medical Center has also recorded $266,399 and
$379,572 within other current assets and intangible assets and other, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets to limit the accrued losses to the retention amount at June 30, 2015.

Health Insurance

The Medical Center has a self-funded health insurance plan. The plan is administered by an insurance
company which assists in determining the current funding requirements of participants under the terms
of the plan and the liability for claims and assessments that would be payable at any given point in time.
The Medical Center is insured above a stop-loss amount of $325,000 on individual claims. Estimnated
unpaid claims, and those claims incurred but not reported at June 30, 2016 and 2015 of $3,401,522 and
$1,744,516, respectively, are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets within accounts
payable and accrued expenses.

Advertising Costs

The Medical Center expenses advertising costs as incurred, and such costs totaled approximately
$1,169,000 and $794,000 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised
goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the
Medical Center expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will
replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. ASU
2014-09 is effective for the Medical Center on July 1, 2018. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the
retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Medical Center is evaluating the impact that
ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

16
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest — Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (ASU 2015-03). ASU 2015-03 simplifies the presentation of debt
issuance costs and requires that the debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented
in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with
debt discounts. ASU 2015-03 is effective for the Medical Center's fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 with
early adoption permitted. The Medical Center has elected to implement ASU 2015-03 in its 2016
consolidated financial statements (with retroactive application to 2015) which is allowed under the
pronouncement., The adoption of this pronouncement did not materially affect the consolidated financial
statements. See Note 5.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820). Disclosures
Jor Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent) (ASU
2015-07). ASU 2015-07 removes the requirement to include investments in the fair value hierarchy for
which fair value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient under ASC 820.
ASU 2015-07 is effective for the Medical Center's fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 with early adoption
permitted. The Medical Center has elected to implement ASU 2015-07 in its 2016 consolidated financial
statements (with retroactive application to 2015 disclosures) which is allowed under the pronouncement.
The adoption of this pronouncement did not materially affect the consolidated financial statements. See
Notes 8 and 9. '

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02). Under ASU
2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to the
discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. ASU
2016-02 is effective for the Medical Center on July 1, 2019, with early adoption permitted. Lessees (for
capital and operating leases) must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing
at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial
statements, The modified retrospective approach would not require any transition accounting for leases
that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective
transition approach. The Medical Center is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of
ASU 2016-02 on the Medical Center's consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958) (ASU 2016-14). Under ASU 2016-14, the existing three-category
classification of net assets (i.¢., unresiricted, temporarily restricted and permanently restricted) will be
replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily restricted and permanently restricted into a
single category called "net assets with donor restrictions”. ASU 2016-14 also enhances certain
disclosures regarding board designations, donor restrictions and qualitative information regarding
management of liquid resources. In addition to reporting expenses by functional classifications, ASU
2016-14 will also require the financial statements to provide information about expenses by their nature,
along with enhanced disclosures about the methods used to allocate costs among program and support
functions. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the Medical Center's fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, with
early adoption permitted. The Medical Center is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption
of ASU 2016-14 on the Medical Center's consolidated financial statements.
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June 30,2016 and 2015

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain 2015 amounts have been reclassified to permit comparison with the 2016 consolidated financial
statements presentation format.

Subsequent Events

Management of the Medical Center evaluated events occurring between the end of its fiscal year and
September 20, 2016, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The following summarizes net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30:

2016 015
Gross patient service revenue $1,057,880,936 $943,098,621
Less contractual allowances 681,930,930 604,350,783
Less provision for doubtful accounts 20,941,899 22,167,345
Net patient service revenue $_355,008,107 $316,580,493

The Medical Center maintains contracts with the Social Security Administration ("Medicare") and the
State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ("Medicaid"). The Medical Center
is paid a prospectively determined fixed price for each Medicare and Medicaid inpatient acute care
service depending on the type of illness or the patient's diagnosis related group classification. Capital
costs and certain Medicare and Medicaid outpatient services are also reimbursed on a prospectively
determined fixed price. The Medical Center receives payment for other Medicaid outpatient services on
a reasonable cost basis which are-settled with retroactive adjustments upon completion and audit of
related cost finding reports.

Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenues in the year that such amounts become
known. The percentage of net patient service revenues earned from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs was 30% and 5%, respectively, in 2016 and 36% and 5%, respectively, in 2015.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation.  The Medical Center believes that it is in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations; compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs (Note 15).
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

The Medical Center also maintains confracts with certain commercial carriers, health maintenance
organizations, preferred provider organizations and state and federal agencies. The basis for payment
under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge and per day, discounts
from established charges and fee screens. The Medical Center does not currently hold reimbursement
contracts which contain financial risk components.

The approximate percentages of patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances and discounts
and provision for doubtful accounts for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 from third-party payors
and uninsured patients are as follows:

Third-Party  Uninsured  Total All

Payors Patients Payors
2016
Patient service revenue, net of contractual
allowance and discounts 99.4% 0.6% 100.0%
2015
Patient service revenue, net of contractual
allowance and discounts 99.6% 0.4% 100,0%

An estimated breakdown of patient service revenues, net of contractual altowances and discounts and
provision for doubtful accounts recognized in 2016 and 2015 from major payor sources, is as follows:

2016
Private payars (includes

Net Patient
Service
Provision Revenues
Gross Contractual for Less Provision
Patient Service Allowances Doubtful for Doubtful
Revenues and Discounts  Accounts Accounts

coinsurance and deductibles) $ 394,162,888 $158,628,522 §$ 4,412,464 $231,121,902
Medicaid 117,033,337 99,155,009 1,321,966 16,556,362
Medicare 523,841,449 415,124,785 3,447,062 105,269,602
Self-pay 22,843,262 9,022,614 11.760.407 2,060,241
$1.057,880,936 $681.930,930 $20,941,899 $3535,008,107
2015
Private payors (includes
coinsurance and deductibles) $ 353,219,284 $160,233,525 $ 7,172,479 $185,813,280
Medicaid 87,670,275 71,259,626 565,462 15,845,187
Medicare 470,671,868 355,372,319 1,543,558 113,755,991
Self-pay 31.537.194 17.485313 12,885,846 1,166,035
$_943,098,621 $604,350,783 $22,167,345 $316,580,493
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

Net Patient Service Revenue {Continued)

The Medical Center recognizes changes in accounting estimates for net patient service revenues and
third-party payor settlements as new events occur or as additional information is obtained. For the years
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, favorable adjustments recorded for changes to prior year estimates were
approximately $4,700,000 and $2,400,000, respectively.

Medicaid Enhancement Tax and Disproportionate Share Payment

Under the State of New Hampshire's (the State) tax code, the State imposes a Medicaid Enhancement
Tax (MET) equal to 5.45% of the Medical Center's net patient service revenues in State fiscal year 2016
and 5.5% of the Medical Center's net patient service revenues in State fiscal year 2015, with certain
exclusions. The amount of tax incurred by the Medical Center for 2016 and 2015 was $15,778,153 and
$14,962,857, respectively.

In the fall of 2010, in order to remain in compliance with stated federal regulations, the State of New
Hampshire adopted a new approach related to Medicaid disproportionate share funding (DSH)
retroactive to July 1, 2010. Unlike the former funding method, the State's approach led to a payment
that was not directly based on, and did not equate to, the level of tax imposed. As a result, the legislation
created some level of losses at certain New Hampshire hospitals, while other hospitals realized gains.
DSH payments from the State are recorded in operating revenues and amounted to $11,421,493 in 2016
and $2,452,816 in 2015, net of reserves referenced below.

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has completed audits of the State's program
and the disproportionate share payments made by the State in 2011 and 2012, the first years that those
payments reflected the amount of uncompensated care provided by New Hampshire hospitals. It is
possible that subsequent years will also be audited by CMS. The Medical Center has recorded reserves
to address its exposure based on the audit results to date.

Electronic Health Records Incentive Payments

The CMS Electronic Health Records (EHR) incentive programs provide a financial incentive for the
"meaningful use" of certified EHR technology to achieve health and efficiency goals. To qualify for
incentive payments, eligible organizations must successfully demonstrate meaningful use of certified
EHR technology through various stages defined by CMS. The Medical Center filed certain meaningfu!
use attestations with CMS. Revenue totaling $1,028,197 and $1,397,358 associated with these
meaningful use attestations is recorded as other revenue for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

Property, Plant and Equipment

The major categories of property, plant and equipment at June 30 are as follows:

Useful

Lives
Land and land improvements 2-40 years
Buildings and improvements 2-40 years
Fixed equipment 3-25 years
Movable equipment 3-25 years

Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net property, plant and equipment

2016 2015
$ 1207869 $ 1,207,869
80,981,333 80,035,543
40,057,230 40,505,237
105,774,552 103,407,854
2,165,901 2,837,272
230,186,885 227,993,815
148,473,963  147.040,706

$.81,712,922 $.80,953,109

Depreciation expense amounted to $12,341,142 and $10,854,424 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and

2015, respectively.

The cost of equipment under capital leases was $7,844,527 at June 30, 2016 and 2015. Accumulated
amortization of the leased equipment at June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $5,217,627 and $3,906,353,
respectively. Amortization of assets under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization

expense.

Long-Term Debt and Note Payable

Long-term debt at June 30 consists of the following:

New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
Authority (the Authority) Revenue Bonds:

Series 2006 Bonds with interest ranging from 4.875% to 5.00%
per year and principal payable in annual installments ranging
from $140,000 to $835,000 through July 2036. In July 2016,
Series 2015B Bonds were issued to refund these bonds in
full, as described below

Series 2012 Bonds with interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%
per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $1,125,000 to $2,755,000 through July 2032

Series 2015A Bonds with interest at a fixed rate of 2.27%
per year and principal payable in annual installments
ranging from $185,000 to $1,655,000 through July 2040

Capitalized lease obligations
Unamortized original issue premivms/discounts
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Less current portion
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$ 9,345,000 $30,430,000
29,805,000 32,065,000
24.070,000 -
63,220,000 62,495,000
2,975,892 4,285,560
1,916,146 2,150,353
(703,688) (731.733)
67,408,350 68,199,180
(4.218.098)  (3.999.845)

$63,190,252 $64,199,335
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

Long-Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued)

In May 2006, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $32,910,000 of tax-exempt
fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2006). Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical Center has
granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing
and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt
service coverage ratio of 1.25. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant for the year
ending June 30, 2016. The proceeds of the Series 2006 bond issue were used to advance refund
$9,010,000 of Series 2002A Bonds, to provide funding for renovating additional space and equipment
at the Medical Center, and to provide a portion of the funding for the construction of a parking garage.

In December 2012, the Medical Center, in connection with the Authority, issued $35,275,000 of tax-
exempt fixed rate revenue bonds (Series 2012), Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical
Center has granted the Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien
on existing and future property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a
minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant
for the year ending June 30, 2016. The proceeds of the Series 2012 bond issue were used to advance
refund the remaining 2002A Bonds, advance refund certain 2002B Bonds, pay off a short term CAN
note and fund certain capital purchases.

On September 3, 2015, the Authority issued $32,720,000 of Revenue Bonds, Catholic Medical Center

Issue, Series 2015, consisting of the $24,070,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015A Bonds and
the $8,650,000 aggregate principal amount Series 2015B Bonds sold via direct placement to a financial
institution. Although the Series 2015B Bonds were issued, they were not drawn on until July 1, 2016,
as discussed below. Under the terms of the loan agreements, the Medical Center has granted the
Authority a first collateralized interest in all gross receipts and a mortgage lien on existing and future
property, plant and equipment. The Medical Center is required to maintain a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 1.20. The Medical Center was in compliance with this covenant for the year ending
June 30, 2016.

The Series 2015A Bonds were issued to provide funds for the purpose of (i) advance refunding a portion
of the outstanding 2006 Bonds in an amount of $20,655,000 to the first call date of July 1, 2016,
(ii) funding certain construction projects and equipment purchases in an amount of approximately
$3,824,000, and (iii) paying the costs of issuance related to the Series 2015 Bonds. As a result of this
partial advance refunding, a portion of the unamortized bond issuance costs and original issue discount
related to the Series 2006 Bonds were included in the loss on extinguishment of debt, which totaled
$1,034,157 for the year ended June 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2016, $20,655,000 of advance refunded
bonds, which are considered extinguished for purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
remain outstanding.

The Series 2015B Bonds were structured as drawdown bonds. On July 1, 2016, the full amount available
under the Series 2015B Bonds totaling $8,650,000 was drawn upon and the proceeds in combination
with cash confributed by the Medical Center totaling $555,000 were used to currently refund the
remaining balance of the Series 2006 Bonds totaling $9,205,000. As no amounts were drawn on the
Series 2015B Bonds as of June 30, 2016, there is no outstanding principal reflected within long-term
debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 related to the Series 2015B
Bonds.
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Long-Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued)

The Medical Center has an agreement with the Authority, which provides for the establishment of
various funds, the use of which is generally restricted to the payment of debt. These funds are
administered by a trustee, and income earned on certain of these funds is similarly restricted. One of the
funds held by the trustee is a debt service reserve fund held solely for the benefit of the Series 2006
bonds. This fund may be used should the Medical Center fail to meet principal and interest payments
on the Series 2006 bonds. The reserve fund requirement was $557,864 as of June 30, 2016. The reserve
fund requirement was subsequently removed as the Series 2006 Bonds were fully refunded by the Series
2015B Bonds on July 1, 2016, as previously discussed.

Interest paid by the Medical Center totaled $2,776,490 and $2,693,116 for the years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively,

Subsequent to the debt refinancing discussed above, aggregate principal payments due on the revenue
bonds, capital lease obligations and other debt obligations for each of the five years ending June 30 and
thereafter are as follows:

2017 $ 4,218,008
2018 3,922,714
2019 4,021,301
2020 3,968,779
2021 3,580,000
Thereafter 45,930,000

$65,640.892

The fair value of the Medical Center's long-term debt is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis,
based on the Medical Center's current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing
arrangements. The fair value of the Medical Center's long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease
obligations, was $65,557,512 and $64,294,967 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement dated as of January 1, 1994 by and between Optima Health, Inc.
(Optima) and the trustee for Hillcrest Terrace's (Hillcrest) Series 1994 Bond issue, later transferred from
Optima to the Medical Center, the Medical Center has guaranteed to fund, up to a maximum cumulative
amount of $1,900,000, any deficiencies in Hillcrest's Debt Service Reserve Fund (the Reserve Fund) to
the extent that the Reserve Fund value, as defined, is less than $800,000. The Medical Center has made
cumulative payments of $251,564 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 under this guarantee. The Medical
Center had recorded a liability for the remaining $1,648,436 as of June 30, 2015 within accrued pension
and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets based upon management's estimate
of future obligations. In July 2016, Hillcrest was acquired by an unrelated third party. As part of the
acquisition, the outstanding debt of Hillcrest was refinanced and the Medical Center was released from
its guaranty. As a result, the Medical Center has eliminated its $1,648,436 guaranty liability at June 30,
2016 and recorded a recovery within supplies and other expense in the 2016 accompanying consolidated
statement of operations,
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Long-Term Debt and Note Payable (Continued)
Derivatives

The Medical Center uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage interest rate risk. In
January 2016, the Medical Center entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional
amount of $8,650,000 in connection with its planned Series 2015B Bond issuance. The swap agreement
hedges the Medical Center's interest exposure by effectively converting interest payments from variable
rates to a fixed rate. The swap agreement is designated as a cash flow hedge of the underlying variable
rate interest payments, and changes in the fair value of the swap agreement are reported as a change in
unrestricted net assets. Under this agreement, the Medical Center pays a fixed rate equal to 1.482%, and
receives a variable rate of 69.75% of the one-month LIBOR rate (0.325% at June 30, 2016). Payments
under the swap agreement begin August 1, 2016 and the agreement will terminate August 1, 2025,

The fair value of the Medical Center's interest rate swap agreement amounted to a liability of $462,570
as of June 30, 2016, which amount has been included within accrued pension and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The change in the fair value of this derivative of $462,570
has been included within the consolidated statements of changes in net assets as a change in
unrestricted net assets for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note Receivable

During February 1994, Hillcrest, together with the Authority, restructured $26,000,000 of special
obligation revenue bonds (Series 1990). The bondholder consented to an amendment of the Series 1990
bond indenture, which permitted the redemption of the Series 1990 bonds at a price of 85% of the par
value thereof, or $22,100,000. The redemption was accomplished partially with the issuance of
$18,950,000 of Series 1994 revenue bonds to the Authority. The Authority then loaned, under a Loan
Agreement and Mortgage, the proceeds thereof to Hillcrest, which proceeds, after payment of certain
issuance expenses and accrued interest on the Series 1990 bonds, were used to pay a portion of the
redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. In addition, certain funds deposited into the Series 1990
Reserve Fund were paid to Fidelity Health Alliance, Inc. (the Medical Center's former parent company
and one of the organizations which formed Optima and hereinafter referred to as Optima) to repay earlier
advances. Optima then loaned $2,581,528 to Hillcrest pursuant to a subordinated loan agreement.
Hillcrest owed Optima $400,856, which was converted from a current obligation to a long-term
obligation and included in the subordinated loan agreement resulting in a total of $2,982,384 owed to
Optima. In conjunction with the disaffiliation from Optima effective July 1, 2000, the subordinated loan
became payable to the Medical Center. Hilicrest used a portion of the subordinated loan to pay a portion
of the redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. Also, upon redemption of the Series 1990 bonds,
$1,500,000 from the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was transferred to the Series 1994 Reserve Fund and the
remaining amount, $1,074,000, of the Series 1990 Reserve Fund was used to pay a portion of the
redemption price of the Series 1990 bonds. The subordinated loan is subordinated in all respects to the
Series 1994 revenue bonds. During 2004, the subordinated loan was restructured by the Medical Center.
The principal due was reduced. The new note bears interest at a stated rate of 5% per annum. The
balance receivable from Hillcrest is $800,600 and $879,035 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As
of August 31, 2008, Hillcrest defanlted on their debt covenants. As a result, the Medical Center had
reserved $793,885 at June 30, 2015 against the note receivable in the event of default. As discussed in
Note 5, in July 2016, Hillcrest was acquired by an unrelated third party. The Medical Center received
full payment for the remaining note receivable balance subsequent to year end. As a result, no reserve
was necessary at June 30, 2016.
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Operating Leases

The Medical Center has various noncancelable agreements to lease various pieces of medical equipment,
The Medical Center also has noncancelable leases for office space. The Medical Center has also assumed
lease obligations for physician practices that became provider based. Certain real estate leases are with
related parties. Total rent expense paid to related parties for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
was $1,657,032 and $1,651,611, respectively. Rental expense under all leases for the years ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $4,287,935 and $5,043,849, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows:

2017 ' $ 3,792,664
2018 2,999,654
2019 2,265,555
2020 1,694,007
2021 1,639,415
Thereafter 8,199,476

$20,590,771

Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited

Investments and assets whose use is limited, are comprised of the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,164,580 §$ 7,164,580 § 6,740,841 §$ 6,740,841
U.S. federated treasury obligations 3,945,048 3,945,048 6,126,802 6,126,802
Marketable equity securities 29,024,260 26,710,178 32,268,622 27,825,249
Fixed income securities 46,786,047 46,869,043 40,608,173 40,851,024
Private investment funds 47.919.006 30,501,744 51,471,785 33,219,309

$134,838,941 $115,190,593 $137,216,223 $114,763,225
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited

Investment income and realized gains and losses and unrealized depreciation are summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Unrestricted:
Nonoperating investment income $ 1,147,170 $ 1,398,644
Realized (losses) gains on sales of investments, net (845,551) 1,132,800
Change in unrealized depreciation on investments (2,332,577) (1.519,111)
$.2,030,958) $_1.512.333
Restricted:
Investment income $ 1,393 § 2,314
Change in unrealized depreciation on investments (37,878) (14,371)
Changes in interest in perpetual frust {434.195) 167919

$_(470,680) §__155.862

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the measurement date. In determining fair value, the use of various
valuation approaches, including market, income and cost approaches, is permitted.

A fair value hierarchy has been established based on whether the inputs to valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from sources independent
of the reporting entity and unobservable inputs reflect the entity's own assumptions about how market
participants would value an asset or liability based on the best information available. Valuation
techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The standard describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of
which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure
fair value.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation
methodologies used by the Medical Center for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis. The three levels of inputs are as follows:

Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data.
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of three valuation techniques. The
three valuation techniques are as follows:

«  Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities;

s Cost approach — Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e.,
replacement cost); and

» Income approach — Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on
market expectations (including present value techniques).

In determining the appropriate levels, the Medical Center performs a detailed analysis of the assets and
liabilities. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2016 and 2015, In
accordance with ASU 2015-07, certain investments that are measured using the net value per share
practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy, which is a change from the 2015
presentation. See Note 2.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used:

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securilies

The fair value is determined by using broker or dealer quotations, extemal pricing providers, or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The Medical Center holds fixed
income mutual funds and exchange traded funds, governmental and federal agency debt instruments,
municipal bonds, corporate bonds, and foreign bonds which are primarily classified as Level 1 within
the fair value hierarchy.

Marketable Equity Securities

Marketable equity securities are valued based on stated market prices and at the net asset value of shares
held by the Medical Center at year end, which generally results in classification as Level 1 within the
fair value hierarchy.

Private Investinent Funds

The Medical Center invests in private investment funds that consist primarily of limited partnership
interests in investment funds, which, in turn, invest in diversified portfolios predominantly comprised of
equity and fixed income securities, as well as options, futures contracts, and some other less liquid
investments. Management has approved procedures pursuant to the methods in which the Medical
Center values these investments, which ordinarily will be the amount equal to the pro-rata interest in the
net assets of the limited partnership, as such value is supplied by, or on behalf of, each investment
manager from time to time, usually monthly and/or quarterly.
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

Medical Center management is responsible for the fair value measurements of investments reported in
the consolidated financial statements. Such amounts are generally determined using audited financial
statements of the funds and/or recently settled transactions. Because of inherent uncertainty of valuation
of certain private investment funds, the estimate of the fund manager or general partner may differ from
actual values, and differences could be significant. Management believes that reported fair values of its
private investment funds at the consolidated balance sheet dates are reasonable.

The following tables present information about the Medical Center's assets and liabilities measured at

fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input to the valuations.

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

2016
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,164,580 - $ - $ 7,164,580
U.S. federated treasury obligations 3,945,048 - - 3,945,048
Marketable equity securities 29,024,260 - - 29,024,260
Fixed income securities 46,786,047 - - 46,786,047

$86,919,935 = $ — 86,919,935
Investments measured at net asset value:

Private investment funds 47,919,006
Total assets at fair value $134,838,941
Liabiljties
Interest rate swap agreement $ - —_  $(462,570) $__(462,570)
2015
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,740,841 - 3 - § 6,740,841
U.S. federated treasury obligations 6,126,802 - - 6,126,802
Marketable eqguity securities 32,268,622 - - 32,268,622
Fixed income securities 40,608,173 - — 40.608.173

$85,744,438 — $ = 85,744,438
Investments measured at net asset value:

Private investment funds 51,471,785

Total assets at fair value $137,216,223
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Investments and Assets Whose Use is Limited (Continued)

The following tables present the liabilities carried at fair value as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 that are
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The tables reflect gains and losses for the year.
Additionally, both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of
positions that the Medical Center has classified within the Level 3 category. As a result, the unrealized
gains and losses for liabilities within Level 3 may include changes in fair value that were attributable to
both observable and unobservable inputs,

Fair Value Measurement Using

Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Balance at June 30, 2015 $ -
Unrealized losses (462,570)
Balance at June 30, 2016 $(462,570)

There were no significant transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 for the years ended June 30,2016 and 2015.

Net Asset Value Per Share

The following table discloses the fair value and redemption frequency of those assets whose fair value
is estimated using the net asset value per share practical expedient at June 30, 2016 and 2015:

Unfunded Redemption

Category Fair Value Commitments _Frequency Notice Period
2016
Private investment funds $39,788,388 $ - Daily/monthly 2-30 day notice
Private investment funds 8,130,618 - Quarterly/
annually 65-95 day notice
2015
Private investment funds $42,682,205 $ - Daily/monthly 2-30 day notice
Private investment funds 8,789,580 - Quarterly/ 1-2 year lockup with
annually 65-95 day notice

Investment Strategies

U.S. Federated Treasury Obligations and Fixed Income Securities

The primary purpose of these investments is to provide a highly predictable and dependable source of
income, preserve capital, reduce the volatility of the total portfolio, and hedge against the risk of deflation
or protracted economic contraction.
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Investments and Assets Whese Use is Limited (Continued)

Marketable Equity Securities

The primary purpose of equity investments is to provide appreciation of principal and growth of income
with the recognition that this requires the assumption of greater market volatility and risk of loss. The
total equity portion of the portfolio will be broadly diversified according to economic sector, industry,
number of holdings and other characteristics, including style and capitalization. The Medical Center
may employ multiple equity investment managers, each of whom may have distinct investment styles.
Accordingly, while each manager's portfolio may not be fully diversified, it is expected that the
combined equity portfolio will be broadly diversified.

Private Investment Funds

The primary purpose of private investment funds is to provide further portfolio diversification and to
reduce overall portfolio volatility by investing in strategies that are less correlated with traditional equity
and fixed income investments. Private investment funds may provide access to strategies otherwise not
accessible through traditional equities and fixed income such as derivative instruments, real estate,
distressed debt and private equity and debt.

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Other financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses,
amounts payable to third-party payors and long-term debt. The fair value of all financial instruments
other than long-term debt approximates their relative book values as these financial instruments have
short-term maturities or are recorded at amounts that approximate fair value. See Note § for disclosure
of the fair value of long-term debt.
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Retirement Benefits

A reconciliation of the changes in the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan and the Medical Center's
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan projected benefit obligations and the fair value of assets for
the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and a statement of funded status of the plans as of June 30 for

both years follows:

Changes in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations

at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss

Expenses paid

Projected benefit obligations

at end of year

Changes in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets
at beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expenses paid

Fair value of plan assets
at end of year

Funded status of plan at June 30

Amounts recognized in the

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan

2016 2015 2016 2015

$(250,014,863) $(221,842,560) $(5,111,842) $(5,118,270)

(900,000) (700,000) - -
(11,004,675)  (10,007,872)  (177,723)  (175,754)
8,173,151 5,033,040 428,637 466,642
(33,830,209)  (22,685,780) (99,946)  (284,460)
1.927.274 188.309 - -
(285,649,322)  (250,014,863)  (4,960,874)  (5,111,842)
178,653,038 172,988,705 - -
(4,200,622) 885,682 - -

- 10,000,000 428,637 466,642
(8,173,151)  (5,033,040)  (428,637)  (466,642)
(1.927.274) (188,309) - -

164351991 _178.653,038 _ -

$(121,297,331) $_(71,361,825) $(4.960,874) $(5,111,842)

balance sheets

consist of:

Current liability $ - 3 - § (414364) $ (445,591)
Noncurrent liability (121,297.331) (71361.825) (4.,546,510) (4.666,251)

Net amount recognized

$0121.207,331) $_(71.361.825) $(4.960.874) $(5,111.842)

The net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from unrestricted net assets into
net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $4,005,967.

The current portion of accrued pension costs included in the above amounts for the Medical Center
amounted to $414,364 and $445,591 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and has been included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 consist
of:

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan
2016 2015 2016 2015
Amounts recognized in the consol-
idated balance sheets — total plan:
Unrestricted net assets:
Net loss $(146.796,806) $(97.927.049) ${2,641.480) $(2,678,302)
Net amount recognized $.4146,796,806) $(97,927,049) $.2.641,480) $.(2.678,302)

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components for the years ended June 30, 2016 and
2015:

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan

2016 2015 2016 2015
Service cost $ 900,000 $ 700,000 $ - $ -
Interest cost 11,004,675 10,007,872 177,723 175,754
Expected return on plan assets (13,208,955) (12,253,677) - -
Amortization of actuarial loss 2,370,029 2,139,276 136,768 144,236
Net periodic pension cost $_1,065749 $__ 593,471 $314,491 $319,990

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 consist of:

Catholic Medical Center Pre-1987 Supplemental
Pension Plan Executive Retirement Plan
2016 2015 2016 2015
Net loss $51,239,786  § 34,053,775 $ 99946 $ 284,460
Amortization of actuarial loss (2,370,029) _(2.139.276) (136,768) (144.236)
Net amount recognized $48,869.757 $.31914499 $_(36,822) $_140,224
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The investinents of the plans are comprised of the following at June 30:

Target Catholic
Allocation Medical Center
Fiscal Pension Plan

Year 2016 2016 2015
Marketable equity securities 70.0% 68.5% 70.1%

Fixed income securities 20.0 20.5 20.0

Other 10.0 11.0 9.9
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The assumption for the long-term rate of return on plan assets has been determined by reflecting
expectations regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, with consideration given to the
distribution of investinents by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual asset class.

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan obligations at

June 30 are as follows:

Pre-1987
Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive
Pension Plan Retirement Plan
2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate 3.69% 4.51% 2.94% 3.74%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine the defined benefit pension plan's net periodic

benefit costs for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

Pre-1987
Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive
Pension Plan Retirement Plan
2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate , 451% 43™ 3.74%  3.53%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A
Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.50 7.50 N/A N/A

The expected employer contributions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 are not expected to be

significant.
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The benefits, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, expected to be paid for the years

ending June 30 are;

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021 - 2025

Pre-1987

Catholic Supplemental
Medical Center Executive

Pension Plan Retirement Plan
$ 7,152,171 $ 410,463
7,986,683 399,944
8,848,456 388,835
9,632,960 377,110
60,789,175 1,685,101

The Medical Center contributed $428,637 to the Pre-1987 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for
the year ended June 30,2016. No contributions were made to the Catholic Medical Center Pension Plan
for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Medica! Center plans to make any necessary contributions during
the upcoming fiscal 2017 year to ensure the plans continue to be adequately funded given the current

market conditions,

The following fair value hierarchy tables present information about the financial assets of the above
plans measured at fair value on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of significant input valuation

as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Investments measured at net asset value:
Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

2015

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable equity securities
Fixed income securities

Investments measured at net asset value:
Private investment funds

Total assets at fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ 2,253,370 $ - $ - $ 2,253,370
40,623,369 - - 40,623,369
33,668.845 - - 33,668,845
$76,545,584 $_— $_- 76,545,584
87,806,407

$164,351,991

$ 1,784,219 $ - $ - $ 1,784,219
43,774,317 - - 43,774,317
30,954,530 - — 30,954,530
$76,513,066 $_— $_— 76,513,066
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Retirement Benefits (Continued)

In accordance with ASU 2015-07, as discussed in Note 8, certain investments that are measured using
the net asset value per share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy
above, which is a change from the 2015 presentation. See Note 2.

» Related Party Transactions

During 2016 and 2015, the Medical Center made and received transfers of net assets (1o) from affiliated
organizations as follows:

2016 2015
Alliance Health Services $ (5,940,000) $ (4,325,000)
Physician Practice Associates (20,437,500) (15,355,000)
Alliance Ambulatory Service . 2,100,000 2,700,000
Alliance Resources (2,627,000) -
NH Medical Laboratory {30,000} (121,000)
Saint Peter's Home 229 401

$(26,934,271) $(17,100,599)

The Medical Center enters into various other transactions with the aforementioned related organizations
as well as certain other related organizations. The net effect of these transactions was an amount due to
affiliates of $1,575,783 and $1,375,956 at-June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. See Note 7 for related
party leasing activity.

Functional Expenses

The Medical Center provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location
including inpatient, outpatient and emergency care. Expenses related to providing these services are as
follows at June 30: :

2016 015
Health care services $272,024,819 §252,127,420
General and administrative 61,813,665 51,451,154

$333.838.484 $.303,578,574
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Medical Center grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party
payors is as follows at June 30:

2016 2015
Medicare 44%  40%
Medicaid 12 13
Commercial insurance and other 19 .20
Patients (self pay) 8 10
Anthem Blue Cross 17 17

100% 100%
Endowments

In July 2008, the State of New Hampshire enacted a version of UPMIFA (the Act). The new law, which
had an effective date of July 1, 2008, eliminates the historical dollar threshold and establishes prudent
spending guidelines that consider both the duration and preservation of the fund. As a result of this
enactment, subject to the donor’s intent as expressed in a gift agreement or similar document, a New
Hampshire charitable organization may now spend the principal and income of an endowment fund,
even from an underwater fund, after considering the factors listed in the Act.

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the endowment net asset composition by type of fund consisted of the
following:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total

2016

Donor-restricted funds $ - $395,655 $7,844,432 $ 8,240,087
Board-designated funds 81,676,681 = - 81,676,681
Total funds 381,676,681  $395,655 $7,844432  $89,916,768
2015

Donor-restricted funds $ - $330,158 $8,316,483 $ 8,646,641
Board-designated funds 83.761.846 - - 83,761,846
Total funds $83,761,846  3330,158  $8.316483  $92.408.487
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

13.

14.

Endowments (Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets consisted of the following for the fiscal years ended June 30:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Total

Balance at June 30, 2014 $82,783,276 $ 528,802 $8,161,758 $91,473,836
Investment return:

Investment income 893,885 1,137 1,177 896,199

Net (depreciation) appreciation

(realized and unrealized) (187,315) - 153,548 (33.767)

Total investment gain 706,570 1,137 154,725 862,432
Contributions - 94,278 - 04,278
Appropriation for operations - (22,059) - (22,05%9)
Appropriation for capital 272,000 (272,000) - ~
Balance at June 30, 2015 83,761,846 330,158 8,316,483 92,408,487
Investment return:

Investment income 936,206 1,371 22 937,599

Net depreciation (realized

and unrealized) (3,096,393) - (472.073) (3,568,466)

Total investment (loss) gain (2,160,187) 1,371 (472,051) (2,630,867)
Contributions - 182,178 - 182,178
Appropriation for operations - (43,030) - (43,030)
Appropriation for capital 75,022 (75.022) - -
Balance at June 30, 2016 $81.676,681  $.395655 $7.844.432  $89,916,768

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires the Medical Center to retain as a fund of perpetual

duration. There were no such deficiencies as of June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Investments in Joint Venture

During 2015, the Medical Center, along with four other participating hospitals and Tufts Health Plan,
formed Tufts Health Freedom Plan (THFP), a joint venture. THFP is a health insurance company which
began operations as of January 1, 2016. The Medical Center has a 10% ownership interest in this joint

venture.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

Various legal claims, generally incidental to the conduct of normal business, are pending or have been
threatened against the Medical Center. The Medical Center intends to defend vigorously against these
claims. While ultimate liability, if any, arising from any such claim is presently indeterminable, it is
management's opinion that the ultimate resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Medical Center.

Regulatory

The healthcare industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations,
which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as significant repayments
for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations are subject to
government review and interpretations as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) summarizes the federal
grant activity of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary (the Medical Center) for the year ending
June 30, 2016, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The Schedule includes all applicable
federal grants for the Medical Center. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Section 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards., Since the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Medical Center, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, results of operations, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Medical
Center.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts and similar agreements entered
into directly between the Medical Center and agencies and departments of the federal government and
all subawards to the Medical Center by nonfederal organizations pursuant to federal grants, contracts
and similar agreements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures for direct costs are recognized as incurred using the accrual method of accounting and the
cost accounting principles contained in Section 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, as
applicable. Under these cost principles, certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as
to reimbursement. Expenditures include only direct costs, as the Medical Center did not negotiate any
indirect cost rate with the awarding agencies.

Pass-Through Awards

The Medical Center receives certain federal awards in the form of pass-through awards. Such amounts
received as pass-through awards are specifically identified on the Schedule.

40




Heker Newman & Moyes, LLC
MAINE { MASSAGHUSETTS [ NEW HAMPSHIRE
B800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.con

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary
(the Medical Center), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2016, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20,
2016,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Medical
Center's internal control over financial reporting (intermal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

41




Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Medical Center's consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Bl!er Neumn.é Nrjes L

Manchester, New Hampshire
September 20, 2016
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B A K R Gaker Newman & Moyes, Li.C
N E w M A N MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE

800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have andited Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary's (the Medical Center) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Medical Center's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Medical
Center's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Medical Center's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 of the U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Medical Center's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Medical Center's compliance.
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Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Medical Center complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Medical Center is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Medical Ceater's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Medical Center's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated September 20, 2016 which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. We have not performed any procedures with respect to those
audited financial statements subsequent to September 20, 2016.
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Board of Trustees
Catholic Medical Center and Subsidiary

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

P)L\Qf N('u)mﬂﬂ% Nojes L

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 2, 2016
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

I. Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
+ Material weakness(es) identified?
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes

yes no

no

e e e

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes no

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:
+ Material weakness(es) identified?
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

yes no

e <

yes no

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be :
reported in accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? _ yes X no

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-Through City of Manchester Department of Health:
Health Centers Cluster:
93.224 Consolidated Health Centers
93.224 Behavioral Health Integration Grant
93.224 Expanded Medical Capacity Grant
93.224 Health Center Quality Improvement Grant

Dotlar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _ yes no

II. Financial Statement Findings

None.

III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None.
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CATHOLIC MEDICAL CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

There were no reported findings from the prior year.
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Poisson Denral Faciliry

Catholic Medical Center ' Tel: 603-663-6226
88 McGregor Street Fax: 603-663-7800
Suite 305

Manchester, NH 03102

June 15, 2017

Bobbie Aversa, Contracts Administrator
DHHS Contracts & Procurement Unit
129 Pleasant St. 4" Floor

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Ms. Aversa, -

The Certificate of Insurance for General Liability, Worker’s Compensation and Professional Liability you
have on file for Catholic Medical Center, Poisson Dental facility expires on june 30, 2017. Cur new
Certificate will be issued at that time and a copy of such will be forwarded to your office. We do not
have any lapses in coverage for any of the ahove mentioned purposes.

If you have any questions or wish to speak with me please feel free to give me a call at 603-663-6887 or
via e-mail at gail.dupuis@cmc-nh.org

Sincerely,

Gail Dupuis
Program Manager
Poisson Dental Facility




Catholic Medical Center
Board of Directors -- 2017

Director
Maria C. Mongan, Chair

John G. Cronin, Esq. Vice Chair
Joseph Pepe, MD, President & CEO
Neil Levesque, Secretary

Donald St. Germain, Treasurer

Rick Botnick

Robert A. Catania, MD

Carolyn Claussen, MD

Pamela Diamantis

Louis I. Fink, MD

Powen Hsu, MD

Susan D. Huard, Ph.D.

Matthew Kfoury

John J. Munoz, MD, President of Medical Staff
Paul S. Moore, Esgq.

Diane Murphy Quinlan, Esq., Bishop's Delegate
Father Patrick Sullivan, OSB, RN

Dorothy Welsh, Board Liaison 663-6552



Gail J. Dupuis

OBJECTIVES

To obtain a challenging position that offers personal growth and professional development in a
business or medical/dental environment.

SKILLS
Business/medical office procedures Computer concepts
Transcription 55 WPM WordPerfect, Microsoft Word
Appointment scheduling OR scheduling
Microsoft Excel Bookkeeping
Medical Manager software Eaglesoft Dental software
Accounting Medical/Dental Terminology
Third party billing Medicaid billing
ICD-9/CPT coding Anatomy and Physiology
Human relations Dental anatomy
Dental radiology certified Dental assisting
Customer Service Centricity (EMR)
Delta Dental Billing Dentrix Enterprise
EDUCATION

Boston College/Goldman School of Dentistry April 2000
Dental Radiology Certification Program

Northeast Career Schools 1997 — 1998
Graduate of the Medical Office Specialist Certificate Program

NH Technical Institute 1985
Graduate of the Dental Assisting Certificate Program
Board Certified in Dental Assisting and Dental Radiology 1985 — 1986

NH College 1982 — 1983
Graduate of the Office Administration Certificate Program




WORK EXPERIENCE
Practice Manager — November 2012 — March 2015 West Side Neighborhood Health Center
Dining Hall Staff - September 2010 to May 2011. St. Anselin College, Goffstown, NH
Banquet Server — August 2010 to December 2010. Executive Courtyard Banquet Facility,
Manchester NH
Poisson Dental Facility, located at Catholic Medical Center.
Office Staff 1998 — 1999, Office Coordinator 1999 — 2000, Program Manager 2000 — Present
School bus driver 9/98 — 11/98 temporary/ Goffstown Truck Center
Customer service/front office 4/98 — 8/98/ NH Eye Associates
School bus driver 10/88 — 4/98/ Goffstown Truck Center
Dental Assisting 1985 Veterans Administrative Hospital, Manchester, NH
Dental Assisting 1984 — 1985 Dr. Steven Wehrli/ temporary/on call

CERTIFICATIONS

American Red Cross — CPR
Dental Radiology
Mental Health First Aid USA

REFERENCES

Furnished upon request
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MARY ELIZABETH CARON PIERCE, D.M.D.

i

POSTROCTORAL TRAININC« . 5
¢ (GEnERAL PRAQTICE RESMANQY IN DR lmn . : 1p98.98
Tujlt {ntveraity School of Dental Medielne : Bouon, Massaokvselly

EDUCATION

Cytrently evmpleting » ane )eu genern) prastice reridency romxng in the arvas of emerpsnoy
dental care, treatraent of speoial needs patients, operatirig room déntislry, geriatrio and genenl
practice denllstry,” Medical lu{nlng lnclmkda diduvtic and clinical ratatien in litersd medicin
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EXPERIENCE . .
¢ DenvaLHYOmusT ' 199302
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Patorned sealing, prophytaxdy, oral hygiane instruction ood prevaittiun counseling, Disvcioped
treatment planning asd patient ind practice manapement skitls. .

¢ DoaaSnomehmey : 1992
New Nomprhire State osptial ‘ Consord, Net Hempshire’
Perfictncd all aspevts uf general detsty for hosputal patients and out-pellents
¢ RAGBARCHASSISTANT - ' 1992.
Tfls Untvarsiey, School of Uertal Medicing * Boston, Massuchuscats
. rwestigated the functional uses of composite restorative materfals through ctinival rinfs for the
Diparmient of Restorutive Deikistry, o . : ’
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Dr. Mary Elizabeth Pierce

Addendum CV. -

Clinical Experience:
1999- Present Dental Director, Poisson Dental Facility :
Catholic Medical Center
1998 -1999 General Dentist
. Poisson Dental Facility

Catholic Medical Center




Paul A. Mertzic, RN, BSN, MS

Objective: To utilize my administrative, clinical and management skills in the development of
systems to enhance the quality of and the access to health care services for all persons.
o Leader in community, ambulatory and acute care health environments
¢  Educator - Assessment, Planning, Developing and Implementing community and
professional programs
e  Strategic orientation
Experience:

1998- Present:

1995 -1998:

1981 - 199s:

Catholic Medical Center — Manchester, NH
A 300-bed community-based health care system. Re-established after the de-merger of
Optima Health

Executive Director Community Health and Mission August 2015 — Present
Strategic and Operational respousibility for the Assessment, planning, development
budgeting, implementation and evaluation of the strategic initiatives for CMC, the
community and mission integration, Responsible for the development of collaborative
relationships and partnerships within the community to improve the health status of our
cominunity

Executive Director of Qperations, Physician Practice Association, Primary Care and
Community Health - October 2012 — Augnst 2015

Operational responsibility for the development, planning, budgeting and implementation
of the strategic initiatives for the Primary Care Practices, Urgent Care and Community
Health Services.

Director, Community Health Services & Urgent Care July 2011 — October 2012
Responsible for all aspects of CMC’s Community Health Services and Urgent Care at

Bedford. Enhance and develop collaborative relationships and partnerships within the
conumunity to improve the health status.

Director, Community Health Services — February 2002 to July 2011
Responsible for all aspects of CMC’s Community Health Services and collaborative
relationships and partnerships within the community to improve the health status.

Director, Community Health and Wellness — May 1997 — February 2002
Responsible for the ongoing operations of community-based programs serving those most
in need. Responsible for creating collaborative relationships with agencies to maximize
the potential for health and wellness efforts to those most in need.

Optima Health — Manchester, NH

A community-based health care system created by the merger of two health care systems
based in Manchester, NH.

Program Manager, Community Education and Wellness

Responsible for planning, coordinating and the delivery of comumunity-based health and
wellness services for those most in need,

Elliot Hospital — Manchester, NH
296 bed community-based acute care hospital

Director, Cardiology Services — (1990 - 1995)

Director, Cardiac Intermediate Care Unit - (1981- 1990)




1980 -1981:

1977- 1980:

1977 - 1980:

Education:

Catholic Medical Center
Director, Cardiac Rehabilitation

Elliot Hospital — Manchester, NH
Clinical Manager, Intensive Care Unit - (1978 — 1980)
Critical Care and Medical Surgical Staff Nurse — (1997- 1978)

Easter Seals Rehabilitation Program
RN Consultant, Cardiac Rehabilitation Program

New England College, Henniker, NH - MS Organizational Management - 12/2000
NH College, Manchester, NH - Accounting and Financial Management courses

St. Anselm College, Goffstown, NH - Bachelor of Science, Nursing — 6/1977

Membership/Affiliations:

Catholic Medical Center Mission Award 2010

Good Samaritan Award in Health by Pastoral Counseling Services 2006
Healthy Manchester Leadership Council

Leadership Manchester, Class of 2004

Leadership NH, Class of 2014

Makin’ It Happen — Board of Directors 2003-2009

Makin It Happen Resiliency Award 2008

New Horizons of NH — Board of Directors 2003 - 2008

Kids Vote — Board of Directors 2005 - 2008

On the Road to Wellness — Board of Directors 2006 — 2016
Governors Council on Physical Activity and Health 2007- 2014
Regional Faculty AHA BLS/ BLS Instructor 2009 — 2012
Manchester Boys and Girls Club Board of Directors

Parish Counsel St. Joseph Parish Epping NH 2014 — Present
United Way CIC

New Hampshire Nurses Association

American Nurses Association

Pastoral Counseling Services — Board of Directors 2014 - 6/2017
Knight of Columbus 2017 — Present

Interests/Personal.

Married, three adult children
Running, Exercise, Skiing, Bicycling, Tennis, Swimming, Gardening, Kayaking

References available upon request.




CURRICULUM VITAE

JOSEPH PEPE, MD

ADDRESS
Business:

100 McGregor Street
Manchester, NH, 03102

EMPLOYMENT

CEO
GraniteOne Health
January 1, 2017 to Present

This affiliation between Catholic Medical Center (CMC), Huggins Hospital and
Monadnock Community Hospital (MCH) will enable the hospitals to grow their clinical
relationships, build economies of scale, and improve value to patients.

President & CEO
CMC Healthcare System
August 30, 2012 to Present

Chief Executive Officer of CMC Healthcare System including: 330 bed acute care
hospital; Physician Practice Associates employing 50 physicians; Bedford Ambulatory
Surgery Center (BASC), an LLC with 50% ownership with 30 physicians, and St. Peter’s
Home, New Hampshire’s largest day care center. Catholic Medical Center is the home of
the New England Heart Institute, serving over 100 communities state wide.

President & CEO
Catholic Medical Center, Manchester, NH
August 30, 2012 to Present

Interim President/CEQO
CMC Healthcare System and Catholic Medical Center
January 12, 2012 to August 30, 2012

CMC Vice President of Medical Affairs/Chief Medical Officer
Catholic Medical Center
(1999 to August 2012)



As Vice President of Medical Affairs/Chief Medical Officer reporting to the CEO and
worked with senior management, nursing leadership, medical staff leadership, and
Performance Improvement to improve quality at CMC.

Physician

CMC Primary Care Associates
(1990 -2011)

EDUCATION

1979-1983 St. Anselm College, Manchester, NH; BA
1983-1987 Tufts University School of Medicine, Boston, Ma; MD

POSTDOCTORAL TRAINING

1987-1990 Baystate Medical Center, Springfield, Ma.
- Internal Medicine Internship
- Internal Medicine Residency

ACADEMIC APPOINTMENTS/TEACHING

1987-1989 Clinical Fellow of Medicine
-Tufts University School of Medicine
Lecturer, State Division, American College of Physicians
Lecturer, Mass. College of Pharmacy and Health Science (*06-08)
Lecturer, NH Organization of Nurse Leaders (2011)
Lecturer, Northern New England Society for Healthcare Risk Management (2011)
Presenter, American College of Healthcare Executives (2015)
Lecturer , University of NH Health Management and Policy (2015-present)

BOARD CERTIFICATION

National Board of Medical Examiners
American Board of Internal Medicine 1990, 2000, 2010

PUBLICATIONS

Fever of Unknown QOrigin and Eosinophilia Caused by Naproxen Induced Interstitial
Nephritis. Hospital Practice; McCue, J.D. ; Pepe, J., August 15, 1989,

A Rare Cause of Facial Nerve Paralysis. Hospital Practice; McCue, J.D. ; Pepe, J., May

30, 1990.



A Construction Worker With A Digital Eschar. Hospital Practice; Pepe, J., May 30,
1992.

Tongue Abscess: Case Report and Review. Clinical Infectious Diseases; Sands, M.,
Pepe, J.; Brown, R.B., January 16, 1993.

Managing Risk, Build a Just Culture. Health Progress, Pepe, J.; Cataldo, P.J., July
August, 2011,

McGregor Street Journal editor; Over 40 articles available on request (*02-2012)
Parable Magazine, monthly contributor

Contributions to Health Affairs and HealthLeaders including “lead advisor” for
Reassessing Executive Compensation, November 2013 and advisor for 2014.

Principles of Ethical Leadership Illustrated by Institutional Management of Prion
Contamination of Neurosurgical Instruments. Cambridge Quarterly of Healthcare
Ethics, Lahey, T., Pepe, J. and Nelson, W. (2017) 26(1), pp. 173-179.

HONORS AND AWARDS

Magna Cum Laude; Delta Epsilon Sigma--St. Anselm College 1983

“Excellence in Teaching Award”--Baystate Medical Center 1989

“Alumni Award of Merit”-St Anselm 2004

“New Hampshire Hospital Association Medical Staff Award” 2009

“Patients’ Choice Award”—MDx Medical, Inc. 2011

“Quality Award”—CAUTI 2011

Named as Becker's Hospital Review’s 2013 "125 Physician Leaders of Hospitals and
Health Systems," based on leaders' healthcare experience, accolades and commitment to
quality care.

Named as Becker's Hospital Review’s 2014 "100 Physician Leaders of Hospitals and
Health Systems," based on leaders' healthcare experience, accolades and commitment to
quality care.

Narned as Becker's Hospital Review's 2015 "100 Physician Leaders of Hospitals and
Health Systems," based on leaders' healthcare experience, accolades and commitment to
quality care.

Named as Becker's Hospital Review's 2016 "110 Physician Leaders of Hospitals and
Health Systems," based on leaders' healthcare experience, accolades and commitment to
quality care.

Natned to the 2013 edition of Becker’s Hospital Review’s 300 Hospital and Health
System Leaders to Know,” which recognizes healthcare leaders from hospitals and health
systems across the country.




Named to the 2015 edition of Becker’s Hospital Review’s “130 Hospital and Healtl
System Leaders to Know”. '
The only NH CEO named to the 135 Nonprofit Hospital and Health System CEOs to
Know 2016

Pro Ecclesia et Pontifice (“for Church and Pontiff’) Medal conferred by the

Pope for long and distinguished service to the Church and is the highest
medal that can be awarded to lay people by the Pope. June 2017

COMMITTEES, APPOINTMENTS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

Current

GraniteOne Health Board of Directors (2017-present)

American Hospital Association (AHA) Region Policy Board 1 (2016-presnt)
AHA Region Policy Board 1 nominating committee (2017-present)

CMC Healthcare System Board of Governors (2012-present)

Catholic Medical Center Board of Directors (2012-present)

Alliance Health Service Board of Directors (2012-present)

CMC Physician Practice Association Board of Directots (2010-present)
BASC LLC Board (2012-present)

St. Peter’s Home Board of Trustees (2012-present)

St. Anselm College Board of Trustees (2012 — present)

New Hampshire Hospital Association Board of Trustees (2012-present)
Granite Health Board of Directors (2014-present) Vice Chair (2016-present)
NH Guild of Catholic Healthcare Professionals Board of Directors (2013-present)
Regional Policy Board of the American Hospital Association 2016-present)
Bishop’s Charitable Assistance Fund Board of Directors (2016-present)
University of NH Health Management and Policy Advisory Council (2016-present)
Business and Industry Association Board of Trustees (2017 — present)
Alliance Health Services (partnership) Steering Committee (2011-present)
ARRA steering committee, CMC (2009-present)

Board Governance Committee, CMC (2012-present)

Compliance Committee of the Board, CMC (2006-present)

Ethics / Mission Effectiveness Committee of the Board, CMC (2010-present)
Executive Committee of the Board, CMC (2012-present)

Executive Compensation Committee of the Board, Staff CMC (2012-present)
Finance Committee of the Board, CMC (2012-present)

IS Steering Committee, CMC (2007-present)

Medical Executive Committee, CMC (2000-present)

Senior Leaders Committee, CMC (2012-present)

Philanthropy/Development Committee of the Board, CMC (2012-present)
Quality Management Committee of the Board, CMC (1999- present)
Strategic Planning Committee of the Board, CMC (201 1-present)
Nominating Committee of the Board, NH Hospital Association (2013-present)



Past

Professional Health Committee (2000-2012)

Disaster Committee (emergency management) (1998-1999); (2008-2012)
State Medical Malpractice Screening Panel (2007-2012)

Patient Safety/Joint Commission Committee (2001-2012)

Allied Health Committee (2001-2012)

Medical Staff Bylaws Committee (2000-2012)

Credentials Committee, CMC (2000-2012)

Medicine Council (2000-2012)

CPOE (physician) Advisory Committee (2008-2012)

Provider CPOE work group Committee (2010-2012)

Manchester Community Medical Board (2009-2012)

Culture of Excellence Committee, CMC (2009 —2012)

Patient Flow Committee (2008-2012)

NH Hospitals CMO committee (2008-2012)

Radiation Safety Committee (2009-2012)

Manchester Sustainable Access Project (MSAP) (2010-2012)

Schwartz Center Planning Committee and Physician Champion (2011-2012)
Budget Committee (2011-2012)

Operations Committee, CMC (2005-2013)

New Hampshire Hospital Association Strategic Planning Committee (2010-13)
Chairman of Infection Control Committee (1992 -2012)

Medical Director of Outpatient Diabetes (2011-2012)

Medical Management Committee (2000-2012)

Medication Safety Committee (2008-2012)

CAUTT task force (2009-2012)

Transfusion Committee (2010- 2012)

Medical Director, Ask-A-Nurse (2099-2011)

Medical Director, Great Day Program for the Elderly (1990 -2011)
Patient Readiness/Selection task force (1998-2010)

Co-Chairman Professional Health Committee (2008-2009)

Information Services Task Force (2002-2009)

Flu Shot Clinic Volunteer Physician (1990 -2009)

Advanced Cardiac Life Support Instructor (1992-2007)

Member, Board of Directors, Physician Practice Association (2002-2007)
Operating Room Committee (2003-2007)

Physician Compensation Committee (1996 -1998), (2001-2007)

Press Ganey ad hoc Committee (2002-2003)

Medical Executive Committee of the Staff of CMC and Elliot Hospitals (1999-2000)
Board of Incorporators, Optima Health (1994 -1999)

Consultant, Peer Review Organization (1997-1999)




Seminar Planning Committee CME (1996 -1997)

Trustee, Optima Health (1994 -1996)

Trustee, Manchester Community Health Center (1994-1995)
Quality Council, CMC (2008-2015)

Cardiac Quality Council, CMC (2008-2015)

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS
American College of Physicians

American Association for Physician Leadership
American College Healthcare Executives




KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

Name of Contract:

Catholic Medical Center

Community Health
Services/Community and
School Based Oral Health
Services

| AMOUNT PA
| FROM THIS

OBTITLE ALAR! N CONTRACT
Gail Dupuis Program Manager $57,969.60 | 0.00% $0.00
DMD Dental Director/Staff
Mary Elizabeth Pierce Dentist $79,185.60 | 0.00% $0.00
RN, BSN MS Executive
Director Community Health and
Paul Mertzic Mission $128,897.00 | 0.00% $0.00
Joseph Pepe MD, President & /CEQ $535,600.00 | 0.00% $0.00
$0 0.00% “$0.00
$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES N2
9 SN
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527 Y 2 D hIvIsiON OF :
603-2714535 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4535 heaed ;EBQJ;&;LE?JE:LEEE&S@ costs for ai
Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4506 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Commissioner G&C APPROVED
. Date: 5/6/15
José Thier Montero ltem #16

Director

March 13, 2015

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Population Health and Community Services, Oral Health Program, to exercise renewal
options and enter into amendments to existing agreements with the vendors listed in the table below to
provide access to preventive and reparative oral health treatment for individuals participating in the
statewide community and school based oral health program, by increasing the price limitation by
$771,894, from $771,894 to $1,543,788, and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2015 to
June 30, 2017, effective July 1, 2015 or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is
later. Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreements on June 19, 2013 (ltem #93)
and July 10, 2013 (Item #48). 44.7% Federal Funds, 55.3% General Funds.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor Location SFY 2014-2017 Total Amount
Catholic Medical Center Manchester $142,400
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. Berlin $388,000
Easter Seals New Hampshire Manchester $142,400
Families First of the Greater Seacoast Portsmouth $205,336
Goodwin Community Health Somersworth $189,792
Health First Family Care Center Franklin $95,792
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Newmarket $96,394
Monadnock Community Hospital } Peterborough $95,792
Speare Memorial Hospital Plymouth $91,482
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Berlin $96,400
TOTAL: $1,543,788




Her Exceliency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

March 13, 2015

Page 2 of 3

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017, upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

See attachment for financial details

EXPLANATION

Funds in these agreements will be used to continue to provide a statewide program of
community and school based oral health services to low income and uninsured children and adults who
do not have regular access to oral health care. Services provided include oral health education, oral
health assessments, screenings or exams, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and assistance in
connecting individuals with local oral health professionals for needed treatment to repair decayed teeth.

Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still
common in New Hampshire. Individuals with oral pain and infection end up in hospital emergency
departments where treatment is costly and their dental issues remain unresolved. This program is
designed to reduce the incidence of decay and tooth loss, and to increase the number of individuals
receiving oral health care, through two distinct approaches: community based settings wherein
children of all ages and adults 19 years and older access these services; and school based settings
wherein second and third grade students additionally receive oral health educational presentations.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the Oral Health Program
will be unable to annually serve more than 23,000 children, teens, pregnant women, and adults from
low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire who need oral health care services, and the
Department’s statewide efforts to reduce the rate of dental decay and tooth loss in New Hampshire for
this targeted population will not occur.

These agreements are ten of a total fifteen contracts awarded as the result of a competitive bid
process. The remaining five originally awarded contracts are in different stages of the amendment
process; the Department anticipates submitting the remaining five agreements to the Governor and
Executive Council under a separate request in June 2015. A Request for Proposals was posted on the
Department of Health and Human Services' web site on January 3, 2013, and again on February 18,
2013. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Governor and Executive Council letters that originally approved these
agreements, both the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section and the original agreements contained
the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council. Because each
of these vendors have continually well-performed its contractual responsibilities, the Department is
exercising this option.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

March 13, 2015

Page 3 of 3

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-

Based oral health services:

Number of 2™ and 3 grade students that return parental consent forms

Number of 2" and 3" grade students that receive oral screenings

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened to access oral health needs

Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent
molar

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with untreated decay that are referred for
service

Percent of all 2™ and 3" grade students screened with a history of decay

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for

Community-Based oral health services:

Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screenings
Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings
Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings)
Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment
Percent of children that receive dental sealants
Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance
Number, 93.758, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #B8010T009037, and 55.3% General

Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be

requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

gk \ y
José Thier Montero, MD, MHCDS
Director

Approved by: b l&@

Nicholas A. Toump s
Commissioner

The Departmen! of Health and IIuman Services’ Mission is to join comnmunities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY

SERVICES, ORAH HEALTH PROGRAM

SFY 2014/2015 - 44.7% Federal Funds and 55.3% General Funds

Catholic Medical Center (Vendor #177240-B001)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $36,100 $ 0 $36,100
2015 $35,100 $ 0 $35,100
2016 $ 0 $36,100 $36,100
2017 $ 0 $35,100 $35,100
Subtotal $71,200 $71,200 $142,400

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. (Vendor #155327-B001)
Class/Object:102-500731Service Provided:Community/School Based Activity Code 80072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $97,000 $ 0 $97,000
2015 $97,000 $ 0 $97,000
2016 $ 0 $97,000 $97,000
2017 $ 0 $97,000 $97,000
Subtotal $194,000 $194,000 $388,000

Easter Seals New Hampshire (Vendor #177204-B005)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 80072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $36,100 $ 0 $36,100
2015 $35,100 $ 0 $35,100
2016 $ 0 $36,100 $36,100
2017 $ 0 $35,100 $35,100
Subtotal $71,200 $71,200 $142,400

Families First of the Greater Seacoast (Vendor #166629-B001)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 80072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified

Amount Budget
2014 $23,500 $ 0 $23,500
2015 $23,500 $ 0 $23,500
2016 $ 0 $23,500 $23,500
2017 3 0 $23,500 $23,500
Subtotal $47,000 $47,000 $94,000

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003
2014 $29,299 $ 0 $29,299
2015 $26,369 $ 0 $26,369
2016 $ 0 $29,299 $29,299
2017 $ 0 $26,369 $26,369
Subtotal $55,668 $55,668 $111,336

Page 1 of 3




FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Goodwin Community Health (Vendor #154703-B001)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: Community Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified

Amount Budget
2014 $23,500 $ 0 $23,500
2015 $23,500 3 0 $23,500
2016 $ 0 $23,500 $23,500
2017 $ 0 $23,500 $23,500
Subtotal $47,000 $47,000 $94,000

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003
2014 $22,808 $ 0 $22,808
2015 $25,088 $ 0 $25,088
2016 $ 0 $22,808 $22,808
2017 $ 0 $25,088 $25,088
Subtotal $47,896 $47,896 $95,792

Health First Family Care Center (Vendor #158221-B001)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $22,808 $ 0 $22,808
2015 $25,088 $ 0 $25,088
2016 $ 0 $22,808 $22,808
2017 $ 0 $25,088 $25,088
Subtotal $47,896 $47,896 $95,792

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (Vendor #177677-R001)
Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $25,367 $ 0 $25,367
2015 $22,830 3 0 $22,830
2016 $ 0 $25,367 $25,367
2017 $ 0 $22,830 $22,830
Subtotal $48,197 $48,197 $96,394

Monadnock Community Hospital (Vendor #177164-B006)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $22,808 $ 0 $22,808
2015 $25,088 $ 0 $25,088
2016 $ 0 $22,808 $22,808
2017 3 0 $25,088 $25,088
Subtotal $47,896 $47,896 $95,792

Page 2 of 3




FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Speare Memorial Hospital (Vendor #177178-B002)

Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 80072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified
Amount Budget
2014 $24,074 $ 0 $24,074
2015 $21,667 $ 0 $21,667
2016 $ 0 $24,074 $24,074
2017 $ 0 $21,667 $21,667
Subtotal $45,741 $45,741 $91,482

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Vendor #177195-B011)
Class/Object: 102-500731 Service Provided: School-Based Activity Code: 90072003

State Fiscal Year Current Budget Increase/Decrease Revised Modified

Amount Budget

2014 $22,952 3 0 $22,952

2015 $25,248 3 0 $25,248

2016 $ 0 $22 952 $22,952

2017 $ 0 $25,248 $25,248
Subtotal $48,200 $48,200 $96,400

TOTAL $771,894 $771,894 $1,543,788

Page 3 of 3




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Heaith Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to Statewide Community and School Based Oral Heaith Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as “Amendment 1”) dated this 2nd day of February, 2015, is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Catholic Medical Center - Poisson Dental Facility (hereinafter referred to as
“"the Contractor”), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 88 McGregor Street, Suite 305,
Manchester, NH 03102.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 10, 2013, (Item #48), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, the State may amend
the Contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement and increase
the price limitation to support continued delivery of these services;

NOW THEREFQRE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows to:

1) Amend Form P-37, Subject to read Statewide Community and School Based QOral Health Services
2) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7 to read June 30, 2017

3) Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8 to read $142,400

4) Delete Exhibit A and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1

5) Delete Exhibit B and replace with Exhibit B Amendment #1

8) Delete Exhibit C and replace with Exhibit C Amendment #1

7) Add Exhibit C-1

8) Delete Exhibit G and replace with Exhibit G Amendment #1

9) Delete Exhibit | and replace with Exhibit | Amendment #1

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
Page 1 of 3 Date: 7)



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

v TNy

Date Brook Dupee
Bureau Chief

3/4%/5

Date’
Acknowledgement: /
State of _ AJL , County of /71 //Sé’/ rou ) on 2/ e /15 , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satlsfactonly proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

/M O wlebol

Name and Title of Notary’fr Justice of the Peace
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

e s

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved Me Gq or and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date/of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:
Page 3 of 3 Date: 7,



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A Amendment #1

Scope of Services

The Contractor shall provide community-based oral health services as specified herein:

1. General Provisions
1.1. The contractor shall use one of the following models to provide the following services:

1.1.1.  The “clinic model” that provides on-site comprehensive preventive and/or restorative
treatment.

1.1.2. The “combination clinic voucher model” that provides preventive treatment at one site and
provides care coordination to link clients with restorative treatment at another site.

Oral health care services for the targeted population(s) shall include risk assessment, oral screenings
with appropriate referrals, oral health education, early diagnosis of oral diseases, preventive care
focused on age appropriate dental sealants, links to restorative treatment and disease management.
Resources shall be directed to providing evidence-based oral health interventions.

1.2. Eligibility and Income Determination

1.2.1. The Contractor shall provide oral health services to low-income, uninsured, and underinsured
children and adults within the defined service area who don’t have regular access to oral health
care. Low-income children and families are defined as < 185% of the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services (USDHHS), Poverty Guidelines, updated annually and effective as of July 1
of each year, in the State of New Hampshire.

1.2.2. If parental permission forms indicate that the child may be eligible for enrollment in Medicaid,
the Contractor shall assist the family to complete the most recent version of the Medicaid
enroliment form.

1.3. Relevant Policies and Guidelines
The community-based oral health program shall:

1.3.1. Regquire no fee for any Medicaid client.

1.3.2.  Assist eligible families with Medicaid enrollment directly or through referral.

1.3.3. Become a Medicaid provider for qualified clients.

1.3.4. Provide a sliding fee scale for children from families without Medicaid, SCHIP or private dental
insurance.

1.35. Assist studentsin finding a dental home that will provide ongoing comprehensive oral health
care.

13.6. Resources shall be directed to evidence-based interventions.

1.3.7. Explore and secure future funding sources.

1.4. Numbers Served

Oral screening services are to be provided to a minimum of 1,100 individuals throughout each year of
the contract term.
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1.5. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards of Care

The Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) recognizes that culture and language have
considerable impact on how consumers access and respond to public health services. Culturally and
linguistically diverse populations experience barriers in efforts to access health services. To ensure equal
access to quality health services, the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) expects that Contractors
shall provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services according to the following guidelines:

1.5.1.  Assess the ethnic/cultural needs, resources and assets of their community.

1.5.2.  Promote the knowledge and skills necessary for staff to work effectively with consumers with
respect to their culturally and linguistically diverse environment.

1.5.3. When feasible and appropriate, provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as their
primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are such that they
are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the services provided to
them without language assistance.

1.5.4. Offer consumers a forum through which families of children served through the program have
the opportunity to provide feedback to providers and organizations regarding cultural and
linguistic issues that may deserve response.

1.5.5. The Contractor shall maintain a program policy that sets forth compliance with Title VI,
Language Efficiency and Proficiency Citation 45 CFR 80.3(b) (2). The policy shall describe the
way in which the items listed above were addressed and shall indicate the circumstances in
which interpretation services are provided and the method of providing service {e.g. trained
interpreter, staff person who speaks the language of the client or language line).

1.6. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor is responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

1.6.1. The Contractor shall report all cases of communicable diseases according to New Hampshire
RSA 141-C and He-P 30, effective 01/05.

1.6.2. Persons employed by the Contractor shall comply with the reporting requirements of New
Hampshire RSA 169:C, Child Protection Act; RSA 161:F46, Protective Services to Adults and RSA
631:6, Assault and Related Offenses.

1.6.3. The contractor shall comply with standards developed by the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA).

1.7. Publications Funded Under Contract

1.7.1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original materials
produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource
directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

1.7.2.  All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shall have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following the
instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5).
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1.8. Subcontractors

If services required to comply with this Exhibit are provided by a subcontracted agency or provider, the
DPHS Qral Health Program must be notified in writing, receive a copy of the subcontract or
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), and approve the subcontract (MQA) prior to its initiation. In
addition, subcontractors must be held responsible to fulfill all relevant requirements included in this
Exhibit.

2. Minimum Scope of Core Services

2.1. Service Requirements

2.2.

23.

The community-based oral health program shall consist of the following components:

2.1.1. Clinical services shall be provided under the supervision of a dentist licensed to practice in New
Hampshire.

2.1.2. \Visual oral screenings or exams by a NH Licensed Dentist or a NH Registered Dental Hygienist
with screening results available to clients or to parents of children screened.

2.1.3. Oral health educational presentations by health professionals to individuals at chair side or to
groups in a classroom setting as part of a health care curriculum.

2.1.4. Topical fluoride application as part of a regular preventive routine or, when appropriate,
through a school-based fluoride rinse program in schools wishing to participate.

2.1.5. A preventive dental program that includes dental sealants and Interim Therapeutic Restorations
(ITRs) placed by a Certified Public Health Hygienist for students and adults through a school-
based or community-based program that assesses risk of dental disease and tooth eruption.

2.1.6. With the exception of orthodontic care, the program shall provide assistance in obtaining
restorative care for children and adults without an established dental provider.

2.1.7. Oral health data collection to support a knowledge base and dental data surveillance system for
use in policy development, assessment, and capacity building at state and local levels.

2.1.8. Notice to families without access to dental services that a sliding fee scale is available and that
no student will be denied school-based dental services for inability to pay. The sliding fee scale
must be updated annually based on USDHHS Poverty guidelines as published in the Federal
Register.

Contractors considering clinical or sociological research using clients as subjects must adhere to the legal
requirements governing human subjects’ research. Contractors must inform the Oral Health Program
prior to initiating any research related to this contract.

Staffing Provisions

The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with the New Hampshire Dentai Practice Act. All
dental health professionals shall have the appropriate New Hampshire license and certification. The
Contractor shall provide the DPHS Oral Health Program with a resume, a copy of the NH license if
appropriate, and job description for any current professional staff in the program and notify the State in
writing of any staffing changes, along with a copy of the resume of any new staff hired within one month
of date of hire.

Staffing Changes

2.3.1. New Hires: The Contractor shall notify the Oral Health Program in writing within one month of
hire when a new administrator or coordinator or any staff person essential to carrying out this
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scope of services is hired to work in the program. A resume of the employee and New
Hampshire license if appropriate shall accompany this notification.

2.3.2. Vacancies: The Contractor must notify the Oral Health Program in writing if the dentist or
dental hygienist pasitions are vacant for more than one month. This may be done through a
budget revision. In addition, the Oral Health Program must be notified in writing if at any time
any program funded under this agreement does not have adequate staffing to perform all
required services for more than one month.

2.4. Coordination of Services

24.1. The agency shall make arrangements for coordination of oral health services and exchange of
information with other health care providers and agencies. Attach copies of appropriate
contractual agreements, memoranda of understanding, or letters of support from the
appropriate persons summarizing the nature of the collaboration and indicating the level of
support.

2.4.2. Agencies that deliver oral health services in communities that are part of a Public Health Region
{(PHR) should be active participants in the PHR. As appropriate, agencies should participate in
community needs assessments, public health performance assessments, and the development
of regional public health impravement plans, all of which integrate oral health. Agencies should
also engage PHR staff as appropriate to enhance the implementation of community-based
public health prevention initiatives being implemented by the agency.

2.5. Meetings and Trainings

The Contractor will be respansible to send staff to meetings and trainings required by the Oral Health
Program, including but not limited to the Annual Oral Health Forum and Calibration Clinic for School-
Based Hygienists.

3. Quality or Performance improvement
3.1. Work plans

3.1.1. Performance work plans are required bi-annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this contract.
The work plans are a key component of the Oral Health Program performance-based
contracting system and of this contract.

3.1.2.  The Contractor shall incarporate required performance measures into quality/performance
improvement plan. Reports on Oral Health work plan progress/outcomes shall explain how the
program plans for future impravement describing activities that monitor and evaluate the
program’s progress toward reaching performance measure targets.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall submit a perfarmance-based work plan with this application for funding
and by July 15th of the second contract year.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall comply with minor modifications and/or additions to the work plan and
annual report format as requested by the Oral Health Program. The Oral Health Program will
praovide the Contractor with advance notice of such changes and the Contractor is not expected
to incur any substantial costs relative to such changes.

3.2. Data and Reporting Requirements

In addition to performance work plans, the Contractor shall submit to the Oral Health Program the
following data used to monitor program performance:
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3.2.1.

3.2.2.

3.23.

3.2.4.

3.2.5.

Work plans and work plan outcome reports according to the schedule and instructions provided
by the Oral Heaith Program. The Oral Health Program shall notify the Contractor at least 30
days in advance of any changes in the submission schedule.

In years when contracts or amendments are not required, the DPHS Budget Form, Budget
Justification, Sources of Revenue and Program Staff List forms must be completed according to
the relevant instructions and submitted as requested by DPHS and, at minimum, by April 30 of
each year,

The Sources of Revenue report must be resubmitted at any point when changes in revenue
threaten the ability of the agency to carry out the planned program.

A copy of the Sliding Fee Scale shall be submitted by March 1st of each contract year. The
sliding fee scale must be updated annually based on the US DHHS Poverty Guidelines as
published in the Federal Register.

An annual summary of feedback from school administrators, families and providers obtained
during the prior contract year and of the method by which the results were obtained must be
submitted with the bi-annual work plan.

3.3. On-Site Reviews

33.L

33.2.

3.33.

The Contractor shall allow a team or person authorized by the Oral Health Program to
periodically review the Contractor’s systems of governance, administration, data collection and
submission, clinical, and financial management in order to assure systems are adequate to
provide the contracted services.

The Contractor shall make corrective actions as advised by the review team if contracted
services are not found to be provided in accordance with this Exhibit.

On-Site reviews may be waived or abbreviated at the discretion of the Oral Health Program,
upon submission of satisfactory reports of reviews such as the Health and Human Services
Administration (HRSA) Office of Performance Review (OPR) or reviews from nationally
accredited organizations such as the Joint Commission, the Community Health and
Accreditation Program (CHAP) or the Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care
(AAA). Abbreviated reviews will focus on any deficiencies found in previous reviews, issues of
compliance with this Exhibit, and actions to strengthen performance as outlined in the agency
performance work plan.

3.4. Performance Measures

3.4.1.

Community-Based Performance Measures:

¢ A minimum of 500 pediatric clients (ages 0 <19 years) will receive oral screenings
o A minimum of SO0 adult clients (19 years and older) will receive oral screenings
e Percent of clients receiving prophylaxis (cleanings)

o Percent of clients receiving restorative treatment

o Percent of children receiving dental sealants

o Percent of broken dental appointments
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for costs and expenses incurred in
the performance of services during the period of July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2017 shalf not
exceed.

a. $36,100in SFY 2016 and $35,100 in SFY 2017 for oral health initiatives, for a total
amount of $71,200.

b. Fundingis available as follows:

s $31,826 — 44.7% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, CFDA #93.758, Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN),
B010T009037

o $39,374 — 55.3% from General Funds

2. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and
indirect costs and expenses including but not limited to personnel costs and operating
expenses related to the Services, as detailed in the attached SFY 2016 and 2017 budgets
(Exhibits B-1). Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees
not to use or apply such funds for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or
any other costs not approved by the State.

3. This is a cost-reimbursement contract based on an approved budget for the contract period.
Reimbursement shall be made monthly based on actual costs incurred during the previous
month.

4. Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State
for each of the Service category budgets. Said invoices shall be submitted within twenty
(20) working days following the end of the month during which the contract activities were
completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the State no later than sixty (60) days after
the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description of all aliowable costs
and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

5. Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice
and if sufficient funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by
the Contractor to cover the costs and expenses incurred in the performance of services.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, an amendment limited to
adjustments to amounts between and among account numbers, within the price limitation,
may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

7. The Contractor shall have writen authorization from the State prior to using contract funds
to purchase any equipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300) and with a

useful life beyond one year.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, orata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ail
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmentat license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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17.

18.

19.

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardiess of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shali do the following:
19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shali mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promuigated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
Amendment #1 -~
06127114 Page 5 of 5 Dat /.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the nght
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish @ method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Renewal
As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewal Section, this competitively procured Agreement has the
option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Govermnor and Council.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials

CU/DHHS/011414 Page 1 of 1 Date __Jot//2



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES \"/
29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527 ;ﬂﬁ"g 'ﬁg}tf\’ éervxces
603-271-4535 1-800-832-3345 Ext. 4535 °

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ‘N‘ \lbl lﬁ (’{ ?

Nicholas A. Toumpas Fax: 603-271-4506 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Commissioner

José Thier Montero
Director

June 18,2013 (u%ﬂ

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council 2 "Z
State House § § .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of
Population Health and Community Services, Oral Health Program, to enter into agreements with vendors for an
amount not to exceed $269,288.00 to provide access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for individuals
participating in the statewide school-based and/or community-based dental programs, to be effective July 1, 2013
or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2015.

Summary of contracted amounts by vendor:

Vendor SFY 2014/2015 Amount
Catholic Medical Center $71,200.00
Dental Health Works $54,096.00
Monadnock Hospital $47,896.00
Sullivan County $47,896.00
Tri-County Community Action Program $48,200.00
TOTAL $269,288.00

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for SFY 2014 and
SFY 2015 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further
approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902010-4527 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH & COMMUNITY
..SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH PROGRAM

See attachment for financial details



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 18, 2013

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This requested action seeks approval of the final five of 15 agreements that represent $268,288.00 of the
$1,039,982.00 total anticipated to be spent statewide to provide increased access oral health care services. The
first ten agreements were presented to, and approved by, Governor and Council on June 19, 2013, Item #93.
These services include oral health education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to
repair decayed teeth for low income and uninsured children and adults statewide.

Oral health problems, such as dental caries (decay) in children and tooth loss in adults, are still common
in New Hampshire. The causes of oral health problems are multifaceted: Individuals with less income, less
education or who have disabilities are less likely to be able to access dental care and more likely to have dental
problems. In difficult economic times, more people have less access to dental care. Individuals with oral pain
and infection end up in hospital emergency departments where treatment is costly and their dental issues remain
unresolved. Among third grade students, without access to care and assessed in the 2009 statewide school-based
survey forty-three percent (43%) had a history of tooth decay. Among older adults in six senior centers and
congregate meal sites, thirty-one percent (31%) had untreated decay. In addition, increasing numbers of refugees
have even greater difficulty accessing oral health care when the need for foreign language interpretation presents
another barrier to dental treatment.

Second and third grade children eligible for school-based dental services will receive oral health
education, prophylaxis (cleanings), dental sealants, and treatment needed to repair decayed teeth within the
school environment. Children through age 19, and adults eligible for community-based dental services will
receive oral health basic preventive, diagnostic, and restorative dental services at a community dental provider’s
office. Anticipated outcomes from this program will include fewer numbers of low-income, uninsured residents
with untreated decay and more residents receiving preventive oral health care in New Hampshire.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, children, teens, pregnant women,
and adults from low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral health care
services.

This contract is awarded as the result of a competitive bid process. On January 3, 2013 and again on
February 18, 2013 the Division posted a Request for Proposals on the Department of Health and Human
Services’ web site for statewide School- and Community-Based oral health services. In addition, oral health
stakeholders statewide were notified by e-mail of the Request for Proposals and a bidder’s conference was held
on January 16, 2013. An agency could apply to deliver community, school-based services, or both.

Sixteen agencies submitted 19 proposals. An evaluation committee of fourteen reviewers, internal and
external to the Division of Public Health Services, evaluated the proposals. The reviewers represent seasoned
public health administrators and program managers experienced in contract and vendor management, as well as
professionals who work external to the Division of Public Health Services who hold leadership positions in
municipal, nonprofit public health, and health policy advocacy organizations.

Fifteen agencies were selected for funding. The selection was based on review criteria specified in the
Request for Proposals. The criteria evaluated the agency’s capacity to carry out a program that provides oral
health screening services to children and other vulnerable populations; assurance of ongoing oral health services
with dentists in the comumunity; program structure and plan to successfully complete the work; a reasonable and
justifiable budget; and the appropriate format requested by the proposal. The proposals were scored and selected
by taking an average of all reviewers' scores. The Bid Summary is attached.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 18, 2013

Page 3 of 3

As referenced in the Request for Proposals, Renewals Section, these competitively procured Agreements
have the option to renew for two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approva!l of the Governor and Council.

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for School-Based oral
health services:

¢ Number of 2 and 3" grade students that return consent forms

o Number of 2™ and 3™ grade students that receive oral screenings

e Percent of all 2 and 3™ grade students screened to access oral health needs

¢ Percent of all 2 and 3™ grade students screened with at least one sealant on a permanent molar

e Percent of all 2* and 3™ grade students screened with untreated decay that are referred for service
o Percent of all 2™ and 3™ grade students screened with a history of decay

The following measures will be used to evaluate the performance of the agreement for Community-Based
oral health services:

Number of pediatric clients that receive oral screenings
Number of adult clients that receive oral screenings
Percent of clients that receive prophylaxis (cleanings)
Percent of clients that receive restorative treatment
Percent of children that receive dental sealants

Percent of broken dental appointments

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 44.7% Federal Funds from the Preventive Health and Human Services Block Grant and
55.3% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

7} N"/\i@%‘“ I

José Thier Montero, MD
Director

Approved by: %ANM

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



730 1 a8ed

'sjesodoud yjjeay eto sy
3O /91434 9A1193(q0 ‘podueieg-fjam © 10) Sandadsiad asoyl Jo yoed
uodn ping pue juawidwod o) st wieay mataas sy jo ssodund oy |
"$901A3S Yl1eay [e1o JulIdal|ap ouatiadxa J1ay) pue ssassod Aay)
135 {135 21)123ds 2Y) 10] PI1IIJ3S SEM 19MIAI YorT ‘suoneziuedio
Kaesoape Aorjod yijeay pue *ypieay sjqnd jyoiduou ‘jedwiunw

ut suomisod diysispea) pjoy pue sDIAIS YI[BIH 21jqnd JO UOISIAI(]
34} 0] [BUIIIXD YoM OYm s|euoissajoid se |[am se yuswafeuew
JOpU3A pue 1oe1U0D Ul pasuduadxs siofeuew wesFord

£301008 [e1ag HN

1019211 SANNODIXY

UOSWBL{IIAY witf

$I01AI9G jeaH 21[qnd JO UolsiAlg Jojensinupy smoxng Ayosg
SHd(Q 8suely 2oueinssy [N Atfend [Bawui]) touwio ] 21D Adg

LLHN Kynoeg 231090 21UU0D

$90IAI9S )BIH 21N JO UOISIALQ JoyenSIulWpyY eqzni( esijy
uonlfeo) yijeaH [0 HN loyp211q Adtjod umolg 1eD
stsuwexy [ejuad jo pieod HN ney) apinojd Asoeig
221JO UONE[[0)) ]IS HEIS PRIY 10teNSIUUPY uos[aN 92
SI0IAIRG )NPY % A[49p[T jO neaing Jo)NSIUIpY ue] Adoer]

[BIUa(g B2 IseayHON

2A1RIUISIADY HIOMIDN

umolg 1a11eaH

$901A19G Y3[e3H 91|qnd JO UOISIAIQ

(8undy) JaryD neaing

Aa|1L edued

13ua(g vIj3(] 1SESYUON [otIe[ay [BUOISS2)0Ld 40) JA

St uouueyg

S20IAI3S YI[B9H d1|QNd JO UOISIAI]

uRNSuUO) uonLINN DI

ujygneop uedy

pue sio1eASIUIUWPE Yijeay dygqad pauosess 1uasaIdal SIImMaIA3) 3y, NIOMIIN YI[EdY [RIua(] S,ua1piy) AL 19)ea1n) Jostasadng 1suuag Juui yeieg
suonBdfjIend) Aduady daq iy qor dwen
SIIMIIAIY JAN
00°L6I'8y S| 00°968'Ly $ | 00000T1L S| 00°968'Ly S| 00°000'CH S| 00°899'SS $ | 00°000°cF S | 00°00Z'IL S| 00'960'S S| 00°000'b61 S| 00°000'Ly S| 00°00TIL S a3guvymy 13Dand 1vi
000(8'CZ §|00880'ST $| 00001'SE S| 00'BBO'SZ §| 00°00S'ET $ | 00'69E'9T $ | 0000s'€C  $ ] 0000I'SE  §|00vT9'ST  $|00000L6  $|0000s'€T  $|00001'SC S [{ELLSN
00°'L9€°'ST  $ 10080822 $|00001°9€ $|00°808°2Z S 00°00S'€T S | 00°66T'6T $ | 00'00s‘cC  $ | o0'0Ol'9E  $|o00TLP'8T S} 00°000°L6 S| 0000S'€T  $)00001'9€ § 10 J8ap
. aaguyay 1anang
00°88€'95 S| 00°819°0> & | 00°000'V8 § [ 00°009‘cS S | 00°000°0F S | 00'91L'PS s | 00'zéI'sy S| 0000008 S | 00000°0L S | 00°000°¥GI S| 00'PST'SE S| 00°000°00I S 1$ANO3Y 13DaANd TY.LC
00'v61'87 § | 00'60£'0Z S ) 00000'C | 00°008°9T §| 0000007 $|00°8SE'TE $ 1 00965°CC  $ | 00°000'0r $ | 00°000'SE S| 000006 $00°LLO'8I S| 0070000 S 70 4837
00'v61'8  $ | 0060£'07 § | 000007y $ | 00°008'9T S} 00°000'0T ] 00°8SE'ZE s | 0096S'zz S | 00'000'0F  $) 00°000'SE S ] 0000006  $|00LLO'SBI  $|00000'0S S 10 1wap
153n03u 135404
8 88 66 8 v6 56 56 6 . $6 6 £6 (/3 001 Moy
4 v S S S s S S § v 4 3 S yeurioy
] ! st | ¥l 1 4] 4l 1 u #1 £l st uopedpsnp % 133png
4 114 oF (44 9% o .14 6 6 34 9 9 0s amanag weadoly
124 Lz o€ 9 67 0 6T 67 14 0g 6T 62 of Ayede) A3y
€S| €515 YH €2-0aNO gS-YNesH g40-WH g5-Iseodeag]  g)-Iseooras [:10] SHOM|  DN-S9AS YUH €0 82-40|s1d xe VIM3LIMD d44/V4d
-yiH Aasdwe] Aunwuo) LULTLITTT g 1918210 Y} 1U0) SYI[HN S[e9§ J9sed WIH [BuaqiApwe Aiu) soopl  -dsy pioosuo)| edipaly dtjoyie)
umMpoon UMpeoD|  JO ISIL SA[IWe 3O ISILY SR

(AnunoQ YUON=DN-{ Posag-100yaS =gS-C Paseg-Aiunuwo)=gD-| Sddy 3214L)

TUIWIEIAL) [RIUIP FANLLI0ISAS puk CD_“=0>0._Q ©O) $33033Y

wedosd yieoH 1m0

Liswwing 21038 444
asoding 13813u0)

awwp wridoay




7407 3dey

00968°LP §

00°007°8Y $ - st - s 00°IPL'SY S | 00968'LY S | 00°968°LP $ QAAQUVYMY 139dN" TVLOL
00'85T°ST § - $ - $|00880°ST $ (0029917 $]00880°ST § | 00'880°ST  § [OELES
00'7S6TT § - S - $ | 00'808°CT $ | 00'PLO'vT § | 00'808°TT $ | 00'808°CT § 10 1837
qaquvmy L3oang
00'7ps‘08 S | 00°000'7¥ $ | 00°000°001 § | 00°000°08 S | 00°000¥9 S | 00°PSI‘9E § | DO'SPE'ELI § . |1S3n0O3Y LIDANA TVLOL
00°ZLZOY $ | 00°000°1Z § | 00°000°0S § | 00°000°0r $ | 00°000'TE $ ] 00°LLO'ST S | 00°S80'88 § 70 1837
00°CLT'OP § ( 00°000'1T $ | 00°000°0S § | 00°000°0y § | 00°000'ZE $ | 00°LL0'81 § | 00°€9T's8 § 10 1822
1s3nd3y 1L30ang
68 6L . TL 4] ¥6 6 $6 001 Ieio),
14 4 £ 14 1S S S S ‘ Jmwiog
1 el 01 01 €l £l vl | uoysaynsnr 3 1pag
or LE or 134 Ly 414 34 0s amanug weadosd
8T Y4 0T ST 6T 67 67 ot Ayards) Ly
as-dvo €S| d2-LD ueayng| gs-K10 uval||ng gs-dsH gs-dsH daq| s xew VIIALIYD dA¥/ VAU
Aunod-uy ipIojiiy 0y NVS woyy aseads Rooupeuoiy| \IH nspduEy

(A1uUnoD YWON=DN-{ PaseH-[004IS =GS-7 PISeE-ANNWWOD=AD- Sy 31 L) UWNS 3105 4N

JUSUIEI [RIUIP IANRIO)SII Pue UONUIAIC 0) 55900y 1sodang 1avaIu0)

weidord Yieay (w0 awsy wisadoag




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Community-based oral health services will be deliverd to underserved individuals living in Manchester, NH.
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

1.2 State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

1.3 Contractor Name

1.4  Contractor Address
88 McGregor Street, Suite 305

(603) 663-6887
05-95-90-902010-4527-102-
500731

Catholic Medical Center - Poisson Dental Facility Manchester, NH 03102
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number .
June 30, 2015 $71,200

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Lisa L. Bujno, MSN, APRN
Bureau Chief

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4501

1.11 Contractor Signature

\

S 112

Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

. Dr. Joseph Pepe
President & CEO

1.13 AcknowledgefnentyStatc of AJ/7, County of thils borvwy 7 j

On ’3@ /] before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block J

f Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

:

le of Notary or Justice of the Peace

L
%f/,% / A::,,e \@ D//M{y C. tlelsh

4 AQW@;\ O dlbd

1.14 §Me Agency Signature

PARANY T

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

B( f Dbr&'k‘
, Bureau Chief l

1.16

By:

Approval by the N.H. Departmfnt of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

A NN
By: e PP i ek, Ado N

1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

On: /9 Jun_ﬂ-olg

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

i By:

On: ]

—
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‘l. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

s BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have oo liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

- 5.3 The Statereserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
bandicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to petform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:




\

&. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

v 8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shail never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of

- termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price camed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, centificate(s) of

- -insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this

Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: .
Date: 3
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' &:eniﬁcate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the

» insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers' Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RS A chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compeansation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afier any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any potice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective

--- successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials:
Date: [2%)!




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

This 2" Amendment to the Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment Two”) dated this 9" day of June, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Concord
Hospital, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 250
Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June
19, 2013, Item #93, and subsequently amended on June 24, 2015, ltem #57, the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment schedules
and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope of work and the
payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.
2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $23,500 from $94,000 to read: $117,500.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to read Jonathan V. Galio, Esq., Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

5. Amend Budget to:
e Add Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2018.

Concord Hospital, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: /Z//

Page 1 of 3 Date: Q Z;?l (7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Heaith Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approvali.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

bholi7

Date

’ /? ‘i/?a/?

Date

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of New Hampshire
Departmengyof Healthahd Human Services

<

N¥me: Lisa Morris, MSSW
Title:  Director

Concord Hospital, Inc.

Mt /.7

Name: Robe r+ P Stelqmever
Title: Pres idewt * c',&'Oj

State of ¢ w Ham psh pCounty of__ e v/ mack on_©&~(G~2¢)7] | before the undersigned officer,

personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of NotaryPublic or Justi€e of the Peace oy,

Kothleen Lamenhbeas e

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace S

////S’/Zo

My Commission Expires:

Concord Hospital, Inc.

e My .

) - v .
o]
<
=
S
3
"-.--.-0‘%\'
AN

7,
""ﬂm

& dRy v{\),?-\"‘\ %
“, HA“PS 3

UG

%7

¢/

Amendment #2 Contractor Initials: % l//
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Statewide Community and School-Based Oral Health Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/111 /A

[
Date | | _r#_?lrﬁe: ﬂ\j w
Ite:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved byﬂ:governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Concord Hospital, Inc. Amendment #2

Page 3 of 3




Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2018

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Concord Hospital

Statewide Community and School Based Oral
Budget Request for: Health Services
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2018

Direct Indirect Total Allocation Method for
Line Item Incremental Fixed Indirect/Fixed Cost
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 23500001]% - $ 23,500.00
2. Employee Benefits 3 - $ - 3 -
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ -
4. Equipment: $ - 13 - 13 -
Rental $ - 18 - $ -
Repair and Maintenance $ - 19 - $ -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - $ - $ -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - $ -
Educational $ - $ - 3 -
Lab $ - 18 - 198 -
Pharmacy $ - $ - $ -
Medical $ - $ - $ -
Office $ - 13 - $ -
6. Travel $ - 189 - $ -
7. Occupancy $ - 18 - $ -
8. Current Expenses $ - 18 - $ -
Telephone $ - 3 - $ -
Postage $ - $ - 3 -
Subscriptions $ - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - $ -
Insurance 3 - 3 - 3 -
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ -
9. Software $ - $ - $ -
10._Marketing/Communications 3 - 3 - 3 -
11. Staff Education and Training $ - $ - $ -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ -
13. Other (specific details mandatory): | $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - 3 -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
TOTAL $ 23,500.00 | $ - [ $  23,500.00 |
indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
Exhibit B-1 Budget SFY 2018 Contractor Initials: //{//
CH/DHHS/011414 Page 1 of 1 Date: 6//7/7




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CLERTIFICATE

. William M. Gardner, Seeretary of State of the State of New Thunpshire, do hereby certify that CONCORD HOSPHATL INCL s
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New {Hampshire on January 29, 1983, 1 further certiiy
that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been reccived and is in good standing as tar as this

otlice is concerned.

Business H): 74948

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOL,
| hereto set my hand and cause 1o by atlined
the Scal ol the State of New Hlampshyre,

this 21stday of April AD. 201

5//@,/

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE
I, William Chapman, Secretary of Concord Hospital, Inc. do hereby certify:

1) I maintain and have custody of and am familiar with the seal and minute books of
the corporation;

2) I am authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books and
to affix such seal to such certificates;

3) The following is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the board of
trustees of the corporation at a meeting of that board on March 21, 2005 which
meeting was held in accordance with the law of the state of incorporation and the
bylaws of the corporation:

The motion was made, seconded and the Board unanimously voted that the powers
and duties of the President shall include the execution of all contracts and other
legal documents on behalf of the corporation, unless some other person is
specifically so designated by the Board, by law, or pursuant to the administrative
policy addressing contract and expenditure approval levels.

4) the foregoing resolution is in full force and effect, unamended, as of the date
hereof; and
5) the following persons lawfully occupy the offices indicated below:

Robert P. Steigmeyer, President
Scott W. Sloane, Chief Financial Officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Secretary of the
Corporation this _/7 day of _Ju~n<€ ,20_!(.

(Corporate seal) M 4' g A Q%M am
S

ecretary
State of: pN P
County of: me/f’iMAC)C_.
On this, the_ /9 day of _Jun€ , 20_1{, before me a notary public, the

undersigned officer, personally appeared Lo g [anre fmda v\, known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
within m§‘w”;;ent and acknowledged that he/she executed the same for the
purpo‘9§§6h fcpntamed

In ug 36Ss er ehereunto set my hand and official seal.
$27 '- )
= ES E
=§ NoE\fP\'?zm 5"‘;:- Q’QQM o (/U‘U\/_\
R \>°q, Fi Notary y Public
0 $
(Se@'l'@ ARY o ‘\\Q}\\

’I,"y HAM 5

P
"lmmm\“‘

My Commission expires: M / 5{ / 20



& DATE (MM/DDIYYYY
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE el

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACT
PRODUCER .
MARSH USA, INC. 2:35'5 AR
BOSTON MA G210 [ T (AIC, Nok:
, MA .
Attn: Boston certrequest@Marsh.com ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
319078-CHS-gener-17-18 INSURER A : Granite Shield Insurance Exchange
INSURED .
CAPITAL REGION HEALTHCARE CORPORATION INSURER B :
& CONCORD HOSPITAL, INC. INSURER C :
ATTN: JESSICA FANJOY .
250 PLEASANT STREET INSURER D :
CONCORD, NH 03301 INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: NYC-007229035-13 REVISION NUMBER:5

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY GSIE-PRIM-2017-101 0101/2017 01/01/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
l DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) 3
MED EXP (Any one person) $
PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | §
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 12,000,000
potey [ %% [ e PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §
OTHER; $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea acaident $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED i
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident}| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I | RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE l ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A | Professional Liability GSIE-PRIM-2017-101 01012017 |01/01/2018 SEE ABOVE
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EVIDENCE OF CURRENT LIABILITY COVERAGE.

GENERAL LIABILITY AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY SHARE A COMBINED LIMIT OF 2,000,000/12,000,000. HOSPITAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RETRO ACTIVE-DATE 6/24/1985. Each occurrence and
aggregate limits are shared amongst The Granite Shield Exchange Hospitals.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
CONTRACTS AND PROCUREMENT UNIT THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
129 PLEASANT STREET ACCORDANGE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

CONCORD, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

. Susan Molloy Audan. Iretlost—

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Client#: 243089 CAPITALREG

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE N Soaee

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁﬁg\cr Jessica Kelley
HUB Healthcare Solutions PN £, 978-661-6233 | fA¥E, No):
HUB International New England EMAL 5. jessica.kelley@hubinternational.com
29‘9 Ballardvale Street INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Wilmington, MA 01887 insurer A : Safety National Casualty Corp
INSURED . . INSURER B :

Capital Region Healthcare Corporation INSURER C :

Concord Hospital \NSURER D

250 Pleasant Street INSURER E:

Concord, NH 03301 ;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN iSSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

%R TYPE OF INSURANCE [ﬁ.‘;&jﬁ POLICY NUMBER .28,‘6%% @P_SHCDWY% LIMITS

GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMARRS EE';Eo'&ErPeneel s

l CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | §

| PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | '§

| GENERAL AGGREGATE s

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | §

| leouer[ 1% [ ioe $

[AutomosiLE LimiLITY COMBINED SINGLETWT | |

| | anvauto BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$

B :b%gg"fo iﬁ;‘ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $

| | MIRED AUTOS O QWNED m DAMAGE s

s

| | UMBRELLALIAB | | occur EACH OCCURRENCE ]

EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 5

peo_| | RETENTIONS $

A | WORKERS COMPENSATION n SP4053897 1010115 (1000117 |x [WSSAWEs [ (28

&EE@%&B@'@%&E@'S}ECWWED NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $1,000,000
Eé%’e‘ﬂ?ﬁ#&??« OF GPERATIONS below SiR $500,000 E.L. DISEASE - PoLicy umiT | 51,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, it more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

State of New Hampshire THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Department of Health and ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Human Services
105 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301
1 o £ D

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.

ACORD 25 {2010/05) 1 of1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#51568298/M1470932 JS008

.
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Concord Hospital, Inc.
and Subsidiaries

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and Additional Information

Years Ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
With Independent Auditors' Report
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